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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue Wz 615.4 661.1 6.9%
Gross profit ES 58.4 54.0 8.1%
Profit before income tax expense % B 15 %5 3 S i s A 15.5 33.7 (54.1)%
Profit for the year FREN

(excluding listing expenses) (M EmHAR) 27.1 28.8 (5.9)%
Profit for the year FREF 10.8 28.3 (61.8)%

Basic and diluted earnings per share &A% 378 [ #5822 7|
(HK cents) (B 1.6 4.7 (66)%

Total assets BEE 325.2 303.7 7.0%
Total bank borrowings RITIER AT = 2.0 (100.0)%
Shareholders’ equity AR R = 138.5 66.1 109.6%
Current ratio and quick ratio (times)  REhEL R KRB R (£5) 1.7 1.3 30.8%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBLE (%) - 3.1 8.1)%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH
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Mr. Neil David Howard (chairman) Neil David Howard 7t 4 (3 /&)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers %t &
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Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FUAEE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
audited financial results of 1Bl Group Holdings Limited together with
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2017.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Established in 1997, the Group is a building contractor focusing on
providing renovation services as a main contractor for property
projects in the private sector in both Hong Kong and Macau. Our
two main types of projects are fitting-out projects and A&A projects.

Our major customers include a number of highly reputable
organisations and commercial enterprises in the private sector in
Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks, hotel and
casino operators, a racing and betting operator and property
developers.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to our
continued success and distinguished us from our competitors. We
believe our competitive strengths lie in three key specific areas of
the business namely,

1. an established reputation and proven track record;
2. implementation, management and execution expertise; and

3. commitment to the management of risk, cashflow and
general financial security.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 October 2016 and the funds
raised from the listing totalled HK$90.0 million.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, excluding the one-off listing
expenses recognised, the Company recorded profit after tax of
approximately HK$27.1 million (2016: HK$28.8 million). This flowed
from revenue totalling approximately HK$615.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group completed 27 projects and was awarded 27 projects, 25 of
which were fitting-out projects and 2 of which were A&A projects.

10 1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Listing expenses recognised in relation to the Listing totalled
approximately HK$16.9 million, of which HK$16.3 million (2016:
HK$0.6 million) have impacted the profit or loss of the Group for
this financial year. These expenses are significant and have heavily
impacted the Group’s results of this financial year. It should be
noted however, that these expenses are one-off in nature and will
not have any impact on the Group’s financial performance moving
forward.

MARKET REVIEW
Hong Kong

During the reporting period, the Hong Kong market remained
positive and the level of construction activity remained high.

The Group performed well during the financial year and was
fortunate to secure a number of large scale projects which
contributed significantly to the Group’s financial success. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Group completed
work on one of Hong Kong’s largest private sector corporate office
fitting-out project. The client, being one of the world’s largest multi-
national banks, moved the majority of its operations from Central to
Kwun Tong and is now one of the largest operations in that district.

Macau

Despite the Macau market being subdued by the general reduction
in VIP gamblers during the reporting period, the Group had a
successful year in Macau with the team securing a record year of
both revenue and profits. The Group continues to benefit from its
long term relationships with specific hotel and casino operators and
in addition, executed the refurbishment of one of Hong Kong’s
leading banking institution’s headquarters in Macau.

The Group continues to strive to secure work outside of the hotel
and casino industry to ensure that the business in this territory does
not become over reliant on one source of income.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

OUTLOOK
Hong Kong

We remain optimistic on the Hong Kong market as the Group
continues to receive a high level of tender opportunities in Hong
Kong and has already managed to secure a number of sizeable
projects in the first three months of the year ending 31 March 2018.
All of our project teams are fully occupied and with the new work
secured, will continue to be occupied in the coming months.

We are also targeting a number of developers in the territory with
the aim of securing a greater number of larger scale projects. This
approach, coupled with a steady stream of work from our regular
partners, will give us the greatest opportunities.

Macau

We expect that the Macau market will continue to be subdued as a
result of both the general reduction in VIP gamblers and the fact
that many of the large scale new developments were completed in
late 2016/early 2017.

Notwithstanding, we remain cautiously optimistic on the Macau
market as the Group is continuing to work with our long-term
clients in Macau and in this regard, is receiving a steady stream of
small to medium-sized projects. The Group will continue its strategy
of focusing on establishing and maintaining long-term relationships
and also on securing work outside of the hotel and casino industry.

General

The Group is looking at a number of opportunities that will help
increase revenue. In addition to securing a greater number of larger
scale contracts, the Group is also looking at potential acquisition
opportunities that would boost its presence in other territories.
Preliminary identification of suitable targets is ongoing, and
announcement(s) will be made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

As at the date of this report, no specific target has been identified
by the Group and no legally binding or non-legally binding
arrangement or agreement has been entered into by the Group in
such regard.

12 1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRBE

APPRECIATION 6]

| would like to take this opportunity to again thank the senior RAZEHEFKERHFAATSREERELEBBKN HE
management of the Company and their teams for their unswerving B FEZ NTWH - BRESEENHYETE > F4ARQ
dedication over the last financial year. It is through their  &{§LAEVS B RIEL -

professionalism and hard work that the Company achieves the

success that we are reporting on today.

On behalf of the Board REREES

Neil David Howard FE

Chairman Neil David Howard

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017 B ZE—tF A TNAH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNmE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% Bl R

Revenue g

The Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation 2N [ 5 = 3 2 B ST ARG MR SR 27 « IEEEE
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private & RPFIFL L HEY X IE B EEERYN - BRI AIEIE
sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Our two main types of projects B &()5IETEE : MK ()ASAIEER °

are (i) fitting-out projects; and (i) A&A projects.

Revenue by geographical location of projects #IE B ith B & 5 B

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF

% of total % of total

HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue

UG (EEGErE

THET Btk FHTT Botk

Hong Kong &% 520,600 84.6% 609,751 92.2%

Macau SR PY 94,776 15.4% 51,331 7.8%

Total et 615,376 100.0% 661,082 100.0%
Revenue by type of projects BB EEES S W

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF
% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue
e fh =
FET Bo FET Btk
Fitting-out projects HIEEH 468,458 76.1% 522,631 79.1%
A&A projects ASATE B 146,918 23.9% 138,451 20.9%
Total st 615,376 100.0% 661,082 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$615.4 million, which represented a decrease of
approximately HK$45.7 million or approximately 6.9% over the last
financial year. The overall slight decrease in the Group’s revenue
was mainly due to the net effect of () a decrease in the number of
projects in Hong Kong which generated revenue of approximately
HK$520.6 million, representing a decrease in revenue of
approximately 14.6% over the last financial year from Hong Kong;
and (ii) an increase in the number of projects in Macau which
generated approximately HK$94.8 million revenue, representing an
increase in revenue by approximately 84.6% over the last financial
year from Macau.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$4.4 million
or 8.1% from approximately HK$54.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2016 to approximately HK$58.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2017. The increase in the Group’s gross profit was in line
with the increase in revenue generated from projects in Macau
which generally have a higher gross profit margin and was also
attributable to the sizeable amount of variation orders of certain
projects completed during the financial year. Accordingly, the
Group’s gross profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2017
increased to approximately 9.5% from approximately 8.2% for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

16 1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2017 were approximately HK$43.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$22.9 million or
112.3% from approximately HK$20.4 million for the prior financial
year. The increase was mainly due to (i) the recognition of listing
expenses amounted to approximately HK$16.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (for the year ended 31 March 2016: HK$0.6
million); (i) increase in discretionary bonus for rewarding the
Group’s staff; and (jii) additional administrative costs incurred for
the Group to meet its post-listing obligations.

Income tax expense

The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and Macau, and
are subject to (i) Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits during the reporting periods; and (i)
Macau complementary tax calculated at 12.0% on the taxable
profits over the relevant tax threshold during the reporting periods.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded income
tax expense of approximately HK$4.7 million (for the year ended 31
March 2016: HK$5.5 million) representing an effective tax rate of
approximately 30.3% (for the year ended 31 March 2016: 16.2%).
The increase in the Group’s effective tax rate during the current
year was mainly due to the listing expenses of approximately
HK$16.3 million which was not tax deductible.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$10.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$17.5 million or approximately 61.8% from
approximately HK$28.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the listing expenses of
approximately HK$16.3 million mentioned above.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings (as at 31
March 2016: HK$2.0 million). No financial instruments were used
for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net
investments hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$322.8 million (as at 31 March 2016: HK$303.4
million) which comprised cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$122.3 million (as at 31 March 2016: HK$51.6
million), mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 March
2017, the Group had no non-current liabilities, and its current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$186.7 million (as at 31
March 2016: HK$237.7 million), consisting mainly of payables
arising in the normal course of operation. Accordingly, the current
ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
around 1.7 as at 31 March 2017 (as at 31 March 2016: 1.3). The
Group’s working capital requirements were mainly financed by
internal resources.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage of total
debts at the end of the reporting period divided by total equity at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March 2017, the Group
did not have any debt and hence the gearing ratio was nil (as at 31
March 2016: 3.1%). Debts of the Group refers to bank borrowings.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign exchange exposure

As the Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, it did not have any significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates during the year ended 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group did not engage
in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

18 1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Capital structure

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 14 October 2016. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since that date and up to the date of this
report. The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and
capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (as at 31 March 2016: nil).

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme were summarised
in the paragraph headed “Statutory and General Information — F.
Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and providing benefits to eligible
participants and for such other purposes as the Board approves
from time to time.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this report, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Significant investments held

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31 March
2017.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 March 2017, save for the Reorganisation,

the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2017, pledged deposits in the sum of
approximately HK$15.9 million (as at 31 March 2016: HK$18.8
million) were placed with a bank or an issuer as securities for the
performance bonds issued by the bank and issuer to certain
customers on their projects. The pledged deposits will be released
when the bank or issuer are satisfied that no claims will arise from
the projects under the performance bonds.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2017 (as at 31 March 2016: nil).

Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the Company’s share offer as referred to in
the Prospectus was approximately HK$65.9 million. The intended
usage is as follows:

(i) approximately 90.8%, or approximately HK$59.8 million, of
the net proceeds for expediting our organic growth and
expanding our business scale by undertaking more and larger
sized fitting-out and A&A projects in Hong Kong and Macau.
The allocated net proceeds from the share offer would be
applied for paying the start-up costs of such prospective
projects, which will include project insurance fees, costs of
materials, subcontracting fees for certain start-up works and
cash collateral for performance bonds; and

(i)  approximately 9.2%, or approximately HK$6.1 million, of the
net proceeds for general corporate purposes of the Group,
including the staff costs, rental, marketing and compliance
expenses.

The net proceeds have been or will be applied in the manner
consistent with the use of proceeds as disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. In
particular, approximately HK$15.8 million and HK$4.0 million of the
net proceeds had been applied for paying the start-up costs of our
projects and for general corporate purposes, respectively, from the
Listing Date up to 31 March 2017. The remaining unutilised portion
of the net proceeds were deposited in reputable banks in Hong
Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Information on employees

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 101 employees (as at 31
March 2016: 97), including the executive Directors. Total staff costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately HK$63.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2017, as compared with
approximately HK$49.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Remuneration is determined with reference to market norms and
individual employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance. Other
staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme in Hong Kong and various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees of our Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The Group also
operates the Share Option Scheme, pursuant to which options to
subscribe for Shares may be granted to the Directors and
employees of the Group.

The Group encourages self-development of its employees and
provides on-the-job training where appropriate.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Neil David Howard

Mr. Howard, aged 46, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director, the chairman of
our Board and chief executive officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Howard
is a director of each of our subsidiaries. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee, and a member of the remuneration
committee of our Company. He is responsible for corporate
strategic planning and overall business development of our Group.
Mr. Howard’s interest in the Shares are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the
Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Mr. Howard has been with our Group for over ten years since
joining our Group as a director of IBI Limited in November 2006
and a managing director of IBI Macau since August 2007.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2006, Mr. Howard was the
regional operations director at a company currently known as
Global Beauty International Management Limited (principally
engaged in health and lifestyle services) from July 2002 to March
2005 where he was primarily responsible for upgrading the
company’s portfolio of treatment centres throughout the Asia
region.

Mr. Howard graduated from University of the West of England,
Bristol in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science
in quantity surveying in July 1993. Mr. Howard then completed a
course in advanced insolvency law and practice 1 from The
University of Southern Queensland in Australia in July 2000. He also
obtained a diploma in insolvency from the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in Hong Kong in November 2001.
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EENEAREEEEE

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Smithers, aged 49, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director and the chief
operations officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Smithers is a director of
each of our subsidiaries. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Company. He is
responsible for corporate strategic planning, overall business
development, management and operations of our Group. Mr.
Smithers’ interest in the Shares are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’
Report in this annual report.

Mr. Smithers has over 22 years of working experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining our Group in
May 2006 as a senior project manager, he was last employed as a
compliance and co-ordination manager at group companies under
Paul Y. group (which was principally engaged in construction
services) from March 1996 to April 2006 and he was primarily
responsible for managing the tender and pre-qualification process
and general management activities. From October 1994 to
February 1996, Mr. Smithers worked as a quality assurance
consultant at Construction Quality Management Ltd. (principally
engaged in ISO accredited management systems), where he was
seconded to Paul Y. group.

Mr. Smithers graduated from Brighton Polytechnic (currently known
as the University of Brighton) in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor’s degree of science in building engineering and
management in July 1991. Mr. Smithers then obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from University of Leicester in the
United Kingdom in July 1998. Mr. Smithers was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building in the
United Kingdom in August 1997 and June 2014, respectively. He
was also admitted as a member of the Institute of Management in
the United Kingdom in May 1998.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams

Mr. Williams, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is a member of
each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of our Company. Mr. Williams has over 40
years of experience in the areas of property valuation and estate
agency. Mr. Williams is the principal of Gareth Williams & Associates
(principally engaged in property valuation and estate agency) where
he is primarily responsible for specialist property valuations and
acquisitions and disposal of investment properties since January
2006. Additionally, he is currently a non-executive director of
Wheelock Properties (Hong Kong) Limited (principally engaged in
property services in Hong Kong).

Mr. Williams was a property investment director of Wheelock
Properties (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to July 2006
where he was responsible for property services. From June 2002
to September 2004, he worked as the chief executive in the Hong
Kong office of Knight Frank Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. (principally
engaged in providing property related services) where he was
responsible for the overall management. From May 1979 to June
2002, Mr. Williams worked for Vigers Hong Kong Limited (principally
engaged in valuation, property consultancy and estate agency) with
his last position as the chairman and chief executive officer where
he was primarily responsible for provision of property valuation and
estate agency services. From May 1976 to April 1979, Mr. Wiliams
served as rating and valuation surveyor at the Rating and Valuation
Department of the Hong Kong Government.

Mr. Williams was certified as a fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom and was elected as a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in June 1984 and
December 1984, respectively. Additionally, he was also admitted as
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a practising
member of The Academy of Experts, both based in the United
Kingdom, in December 1999 and April 2009, respectively.
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Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. Andrews, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee and audit committee of our Company. Mr. Andrews has
over 26 years of experience in the construction industry. Mr.
Andrews is the director of Andrews Commercial Services Limited
(principally engaged in consultancy services in the construction
industry) since April 2013.

Mr. Andrews worked at Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
(principally engaged in construction) from January 1990 to March
2013, with his last position as the divisional commercial manager of
Hong Kong and Macau, where he was primarily responsible for
overseeing contractual and commercial aspect of the business unit.

Mr. Andrews obtained his diploma in quantity surveying from
Cauldon College (currently known as Stoke On Trent College) in the
United Kingdom in June 1979. He then obtained a certificate of
commercial mediation conducted by The Accord Group Australia in
association with the Mediation Council of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre in Hong Kong in December 1998.

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong

Mr. Wong, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of
the audit committee, and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of our Company. Mr. Wong has been
working at Young Brothers Aviation Ltd. (principally engaged in
aviation investments) as their chief financial officer since November
2000.

Mr. Wong has over 23 years of working experience in the fields of
finance and accounting. Mr. Wong acted as an independent non-
executive director for Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited
(stock code: 402) (currently known as Peace Map Holding Ltd.)
(which was principally engaged in waterworks engineering) from
October 2008 to September 2010. He worked as a group
accounting manager at Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 882), principally engaged in utilities operations,
infrastructure operations and other investments, from February
1998 to November 2000.
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Mr. Wong was an accountant at Firstone International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 530) (currently known as Goldin Financial
Holdings Limited), which was principally engaged in winery and
wine related business, from October 1995 to February 1998. He
worked as a staff accountant Il at Ernst & Young from April 1994 to
October 1995.

Mr. Wong graduated from Curtin University of Technology in
Australia with a bachelor’s degree of business in accounting in
August 1992. He then obtained a second bachelor’s degree in
Chinese law jointly offered by Tsinghua University in the PRC and
Hong Kong University School of Professional and Continuing
Education in Hong Kong in July 2005. Mr. Wong is an associate of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) certified in June
1997, a certified practising accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants admitted in December 1995, and
a certified tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
registered in January 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwan John Lau

Mr. Lau, aged 49, first joined our Group in June 2001, and is
currently the tendering director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing tenders and recruitment of project-related staff.

Mr. Lau has over 22 years of working experience in the areas of
property development and fitting-out. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as a project manager for L.P. Contractors & Construction
Co., (H.K)) Ltd. (principally engaged in interior decoration business)
from July 1998 to June 2001 where he was primarily responsible
for the overall management of the company. From July 1996 to
July 1998, he worked as a project manager at Global Top Design &
Engineering Ltd. (principally engaged in interior fitting-out business)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management. From August 1992 to April 1994, Mr. Lau worked as
the site supervisor at Interior Contract International Limited
(principally engaged in fitting-out, decoration and contracting)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management.

Mr. Lau graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
industrial and civil engineering from Hunan University in the PRC in
July 1990. He then graduated with a master’s degree of science in
facility management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in December 2005.
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Mr. Siu Hong Lui

Mr. Lui, aged 42, first joined our Group in September 2005, and is
currently the regional director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the Macau operations of our Group.

Mr. Lui has over 16 years of working experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lui worked as a quantity
surveyor for Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited from May
2001 to February 2005. He worked as an assistant quantity
surveyor in Gammon Construction Limited and Kier Hong Kong
Limited (both principally engaged in civil construction works) from
June 2000 to November 2000 and from August 1998 to July 1999,
respectively. Mr. Lui worked at Universal Dockyard, Limited with his
last position as the assistant quantity surveyor (principally engaged
in marine and civil construction works) from October 1994 to May
1996 where he was primarily responsible for project budget
planning and project subcontracting.

Mr. Lui was awarded a certificate in building studies from the
Vocational Training Council for completing a course at Morrison Hill
Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong in July 1997. He
then obtained a higher diploma in building and construction from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Lui graduated with a bachelor’s degree of
science in construction management from University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom in October 2005, before
attaining a master’s degree of science in construction law and
dispute resolution from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in October 2008.

B

B 42 R-ZEZRFEABVRIAREER -
TAEERGEEE - HETERAEBERRMIERS -

BEHLTEREXED16F TIELR - MAKRKEA -
$5‘E$b”\_ff FRhAZ-_ZTTRF - AEERERZ
HZERARNIHAEN - R -_TTTFRAZ_ZTT
ZE+—AR—AANFENRE-ANNFLA Bk
BREFEEARARLRENBFTEARAR (B 2K
FEARBETRE) BEIETRRSER - R —NANEHF
TAE-NANRFREA  EEERATHBBERLQR(E
EREHERTIARETIR)ER - BERATRA RBE
THAER  TEBFEAREMREILIBR AN -

BARER—NNEFLATRE BB EIRBE TEN
ELUT%25RCAREEEEHRE SRR (BEFEILAR))
MRIETERERERE BN _FTTF+ ARG
BEPTARBRERBESPUE - B& - ERERZ

T RF+ AEFERNEE A FRIZEE K2 (University of

Wolverhampton) + EBEEE LB EE LB - YR =
ZENF+AREBEAE T KEBEELEF SIS

B8 -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 27
2016/2017 FE @&



BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEEEE

Mr. Wai Fung Kong

Mr. Kong, aged 41, first joined our Group in December 2009, and
is currently the commercial director of our Group. He is responsible
for overseeing the commercial department of our Group.

Mr. Kong has over 14 years of working experience in the field of
quantity surveying. He worked as a project quantity surveyor for
Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited,
principally engaged in construction, from May 2009 to November
2009. Mr. Kong worked as a quantity surveying consultant for
Rick’s Management Consultancy Limited (principally engaged in
quantity surveying consultancy services) from October 2006 to
March 2009. Mr. Kong worked as a project quantity surveyor for
New House Construction Co., Ltd, principally engaged in
construction services, from June 2005 to September 2006. He
worked as an assistant quantity surveyor at D. G. Jones & Partners
(H.K.) Ltd. and then as a quantity surveyor at Northcroft Hong Kong
Ltd., both principally engaged in construction consultancy services,
from July 2001 to April 2002 and from July 2002 to August 2004,
respectively.

Mr. Kong graduated with a bachelor’s degree of science in quantity
surveying and a master’s degree of engineering in building
engineering from City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
November 2001. He was elected as a professional member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and was certified as a
registered professional surveyor in the quantity surveying division
by the Surveyors Registration Board in February 2010 and April
2013, respectively.

Ms. Wai Che Rosanna Chu

Ms. Chu, aged 50, first joined our Group in December 2003, and is
currently the chief financial officer of our Group. She is responsible
for overseeing the financial and accounting functions of our Group.

Ms. Chu has over 25 years of working experience in the field of
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to June
2003, Ms. Chu worked as a senior manager in the finance
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers. From April 1996 to June
2002, she worked as a manager in the finance department of
Arthur Andersen & Co. From September 1990 to March 1996, she
was employed by Ernst & Young, with her last position as manager
in the audit department.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEEE

Ms. Chu graduated with a bachelor’s degree of commerce from
The University of Manitoba in Canada in May 1989. She is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
certified in July 1995, and an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) certified in December 1995.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yun Wah Man

Mr. Man, aged 34, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 11 June 2016. He is the principal and head of
corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F. Chan & Co., and a
director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
eight years of experience in corporate services.

Mr. Man is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries certified in March
2015.

Mr. Man obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business
administration and management from University of Huddersfield in
the United Kingdom in March 2010 and a master’s degree of
corporate governance from The Open University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in November 2014.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are to act as a contractor
focusing on providing renovation services as a main contractor for
property projects in the private sector in Hong Kong and Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a business review of the Group for the year and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis as set
out on pages 15 to 21 of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March 2017 using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Summary on page 141 of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

As the business of the Group is project-based, profitability of the
Group is dependent on a consistent stream of tender opportunities.

Upon converting these tender opportunities to awarded contracts,
the importance of a stringent project management system come
into play so that costs can be controlled, income can be secured
and positive cashflow can be maintained.

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tender strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and controlling of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

Further details of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the
Prospectus.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to its corporate and social responsibility in
promoting a sustainable and environmentally friendly environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact in our daily course
of business. The Group’s in-house guidelines contain measures
and work procedures governing environmental protection
compliance that are required to be followed by the Group’s
employees, suppliers and subcontractors. Such measures and
procedures included air pollution control, noise control and waste
disposal.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are set out in the ESG Report in this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Group

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group which are
stated in the Regulatory Overview Section of the Prospectus. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during
the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group. The Company has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Key Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that its employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close and stable relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality construction services to our customers so as
to ensure the Group’s sustainable development. Employees are
regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the Group.
The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and
provides them with health and safety and other developmental
training and has proper whistle blowing procedures in place for our
employees to follow without fear of reprisal of receiving any
negative impacts.

Further details of our customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Business” in the Prospectus.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81 of this report.

A dividend of HK$20 million was declared to the then shareholders
of the Company on 11 June 2016 and was paid on 23 September
2016. Investors who became the shareholders of the Company
after the Listing were not entitled to such dividend.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2017, to be payable
on or about Wednesday, 18 October 2017. Based on 800,000,000
Shares in issue as at the date of this report, it is expected that the
total amount of final dividend payable to our Shareholders is
approximately HK$8.0 million in aggregate for the year ended 31
March 2017, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
2017 AGM.

As far as the Company is aware, as at the date of this report, there
has been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has
waived, or agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be
distributed for the year ended 31 March 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2017 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 19 September 2017 to Friday, 22 September
2017 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2017 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 September
2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(Continued)

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or about Wednesday, 18
October 2017 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 6 October 2017.
To ascertain the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 3 October 2017 to Friday, 6 October 2017,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered by the Company. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 September 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity on page 83 of this annual report and note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. As at 31 March 2017, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution, as calculated
under the provision of section 79B of the Companies Ordinance,
and in accordance with the Companies Law Cap.22 of Cayman
Islands, was approximately HK$97.3 million inclusive of share
premium and retained earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statement on page 123 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 141 of this
annual report.

EENERMBEETTFEE)

BFREAR T —FREBFARSUMER - ER AR
BN -_Z—+tFE+ A+ \B(EHD)Spig TR
—T—+F+ANB(EHR)ZV AR RREZ M
He BRETHREZEEZABRENETN - ARRER
—E—+Ft+A=ZRA(EHR ) ZE_FT—+F+AHE
HAH) (BEEEMB)EERERMDBFELFTE B
MARRBIERETMNBROBEERL - BFAERZE
ERZREBE  FTEEZMBFAREREGHERKRE
BN —E—+tFENA-TNR(ESR) TFHUE=+2
Al REIAABNEBERNDBFPERLSBEEEFHFER
BRAA - I ABEBRRE NEBRI18IFHAE A L2218 -

[N

ARRABE_T—tF=A=T—HALFENRAE
FHBEENGAMERRME21 -

fé

FEERE—_T—+F=A=1+—HILFENREEEZD
FRANFRFSSAMGABBR SR RGBT HIRE
ffafe2 - R-ZFE—EF=A=+t—H8 RABEHE
TOBIRMIRX T E R RIER SR EAMFE 228 REA
RAFAHDROFEENRO7TIBHET - BREEKME
EBRRE AT -

M - BMERRE
FEBEZE-_T—HF=A=T—HILFENYE K
B RBEFEEZDFBEHNAFRE 123 ARG E W H]RE
BizE15 -

PR

AEERBENEANRFENEEREELRGEMES
RAFIRE 141 8 -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 33
2016/2017 FE @&



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 March 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities.

ISSUE OF SHARES

On 14 October 2016, the Company’s Shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. A total of 200,000,000 Shares
with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share were issued at HK$0.45
each by way of public offer and placing, raising a total of
approximately HK$90 million. The net proceeds raised by the
Company from the share offer, after deduction of the underwriting
commissions and other related listing expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$65.9 million. For information on the use of
proceeds of the share offer, please refer to the section headed “Use
of proceeds” in the Management and Discussion Analysis of this
report.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2017 amounted to HK$20,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2017 and up to the date of this report were:

Name Position

Mr. Neil David Howard Executive Director, chairman,

chief executive officer

Executive Director,
chief operations officer

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews  Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong  Independent Non-executive Director

The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers, Mr. Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Robert Peter
Andrews and Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong shall retire by rotation at
the 2017 AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven Paul Smithers, Mr.
Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. Lap
Shek Eddie Wong has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than under normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

EERFETBRAERRKRS - HEAROKRE
EETNESIAE

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the Directors and the chief executive had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

RZE—+F=A=+—H BEERFETHRAERAK
N HEERERR R SAEEE(EERLESF L
HIE R PSS XVED) MRt - AR RIEEES - #E
EARRBREBESRAEROIEIL2GATHFENE
M iR B E MR R T+ FAEIRETRIZASTTHE AR
D) SR B FT RS AT

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company

Name of
Director(s)/

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Relevant company
(including associated

Number and

the total issued
share capital

chief executive Capacity/nature of interest corporation) class of Shares' of our Company
RAARE BT
B xE HEATE PR ZE R
THRABHS L0 331 (BFEEEEE) RGEE RER BMARER DL
Mr. Neil David Howard?®  Interest in controlled corporation Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 391,376,000 Shares 48.92%
Neil David X EE R Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 391,376,000 f& A% 1%
Howard 5t 4 2
Mr. Steven Paul Interest in controlled corporation Breadnbutter Holdings 151,200,000 Shares 18.90%
Smithers® Limited
Steven Paul XL ERER Breadnbutter Holdings 151,200,000 A& 3% 15
Smithers % 4 8 Limited
Notes: B EE -
(1) Allthe above Shares are held in long position. 1 AREFRBEBRODEUERRFS -

2 Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Neil David Howard, held
391,376,000 Shares. Mr. Neil David Howard is deemed to be interested
in the 391,376,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Neil David Howard is

the director of Brilliant Blue Sky Limited

©)) Breadnbutter Holdings Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Steven Paul @)
Smithers, held 151,200,000 Shares. Mr. Steven Paul Smithers is deemed
to be interested in the 151,200,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO. Mr.
Steven Paul Smithers is the director of Breadnbutter Holdings Limited.
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(2)  Neil David Howard %t 4 2 & # & #9 Brilliant Blue Sky Limited
575 391,376,000 % 3% 17  Neil David Howard %t 4 1R 15 35 5
2 BRI & 16 4% 48 B 52 391,376,000 AR AL 17 7 B # 25 © Neil
David Howard % 4 /4 Brilliant Blue Sky Limited # & = °

Steven Paul Smithers %t & 2 & # A #) Breadnbutter Holdings
Limited ¥ # 151,200,000 A% A& 15 ° Steven Paul Smithers %t 4=
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF x
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, =

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being the Director or chief executive) + / Bi& (WIEEEHEE

had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares K& A

or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO, or which recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

ERRRBG - HEROREEEFRE

R#%R
R-B—LF=A=+—B REFFA ATA
TRAR)RARR - HEE

A&, SR B D AR T A K

WA BEAREEFRBEEFIEXVEE2 REIHE
1§ A RAN A B 5B S aE AR A B R IR 5 5 & 2 & &)
F 3B IETFHFENELMAERIAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number and share capital of

Name Capacity/nature of interest class of Shares! our Company

RAEDABERT

IR BEEH

wE LB B HEntE ROBERER HMOREEILL

Brilliant Blue Sky Limited? Beneficial interest 391,376,000 Shares 48.92%
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited? il 391,376,000 A% I {7

Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard?® Interest of spouse 391,376,000 Shares 48.92%
EEmts foiBrEss 391,376,000 &A% {7

Breadnbutter Holdings Limited* Beneficial interest 151,200,000 Shares 18.90%
Breadnbutter Holdings Limited* EnEn 151,200,000 J& f& 1%

Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam® Interest of spouse 151,200,000 Shares 18.90%

MEZS L

Notes:

[ R

All the above Shares are held in long position.

Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Neil David Howard, held

Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard, the spouse of Mr. Neil David Howard, is
deemed to be interested in the 391,376,000 Shares held by Mr. Neil
David Howard, through his controlled corporation, Brilliant Blue Sky

Breadnbutter Holdings Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Steven Paul

@ 391,376,000 Shares.
®)
Limited, pursuant to the SFO.
)
Smithers, held 151,200,000 Shares.
©)

Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam, the spouse of Mr. Steven Paul Smithers, is
deemed to be interested in the 151,200,000 Shares held by Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers, through his controlled corporation, Breadnbutter Holdings
Limited, pursuant to the SFO.

151,200,000 A% {0

N AREREBRODBUERRS -

(2)  Neil David Howard 5t 4 % & ¥ A 19 Briliant Blue Sky Limited
#5745 391,376,000 BX AL 1D ©

(3)  #EhEZ £ (Neil David Howard £ £ L8 ) IRIEE S L&
{& 7] % 4R & A Neil David Howard 45 4 35 38 H = 2% &
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 3 % #9 391,376,000 i% J& 1 & # &
HEZS o

(4)  Steven Paul Smithers %t 4 % & A ) Breadnbutter Holdings
Limited 354 151,200,000 & Bk 15 °

(6)  #EZZ £ (Steven Paul Smithers LB S ) IR IEEH &
HA S 617 42 48 5 7 Steven Paul Smithers 5t 4 35 i B & 420 5%
Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 334 # 151,200,000 A& i 1
PEEB R o
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year ended 31 March 2017, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.1% of the total
purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 25.8% of the
total purchase cost.

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
27.4% of the total revenue and the aggregate sales to its top five
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 70.4% of the
total revenue.

None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of our Company) had any
interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a Share Option Scheme on 20 September
2016 by passing of a written resolution of the then shareholders of
the Company. The Share Option Scheme became effective on the
Listing Date and will remain in force until the tenth anniversary of
the Listing Date. No option under the Share Option Scheme had
been granted since the Listing Date up to the date of this report.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants”).

Maximum Number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares pursuant to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
80,000,000 Shares, which represented 10% of the then issued
share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date and the date of
this annual report. This limit may be renewed at any time provided
that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the
renewal.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company at any time must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes
of our Company if such grant will result in this 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders at general meeting, the
maximum entitlement of each eligible participant is that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, outstanding and cancelled options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, during a period notified or
to be notified by the Board, provided that such period of time does
not exceed 10 years commencing on the date on which the option
is granted.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held before
it is Exercised

Each grantee under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her option in the manner set out in his/her offer
document. The period within which an option may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, provided that such period is consistent with
any other terms and condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on or before the last
day for acceptance of the option as set out in the offer document.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Schemes
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it is
not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date; (b) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.

For more information on the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
pages 13 to 24 of Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. Particulars of the employee
retirement benefits of the Group are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public float of
25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2017 was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, save for the Share Option
Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements in respect of Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely
to compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as the related party transactions disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report, no Controlling
Shareholder had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to
the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

There is no other change in Directors’ biographical details which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since the date of the Prospectus up to the date of this report.

42 1Bl Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017

EENHRFRBHER

(EE A F=RA=F+—HIFE BEEERAR
AETHBARMNESARESBNBREAREERXE
e BLK N B b EL Y BB 1 R B SE AR X B AT REAE AR S Y
P REEEMARE EMRRFIARE -

ERBRRREXEHNNER

BAREGFE M ERKRME0PMIRBERBE TSI
BEERRRNRARFRREEMAMNBRARNRBE T
—tEF A=t -HLFERIIHAEBRREEER
(TR E W RAARRBRERS) OEREHFERSL
EEEREA R -

EHRAIZE13.51B(1) A E T EESBEREH

EXEREHREREAREEEAREAHILWEEAMD
RIE ETHAR RIS 13.51B(1) IRA T BN EE) -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company,
our Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Neil David Howard and
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, have entered into a Deed of non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and for the benefits
of each other member of our Group) on 20 September 2016,
pursuant to which they have undertaken, among others, not to
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Deed are
set out in the section headed “Deed of Non-Competition” of the
Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written
confirmation to the Board in respect of their compliance with the
undertakings in the Deed since the entering of the Deed on 20
September 2016, to 31 March 2017 (the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as
part of the annual review process and confirmed that the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed during the
Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the Articles. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2017 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought
against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2017 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report.

The related party transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute “continuing connected transactions”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which are fully
exempted from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has not
conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under
the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this
annual report form part of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value
through good corporate governance. The Company has developed
and implemented sound governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the
Company.

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions from the Listing Date up to 31 March 2017.

Our Company complies with the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules with the exception of Code
Provision A.2.1, which requires the roles of chairman and chief
executive be different individuals. Under Code Provision A.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Neil David Howard holds both positions. Mr.
Howard has been primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
general management and business development and for
formulating business strategies and policies for our business
management and operations since he joined our Group in 2006.
Taking into account the continuation of management and the
implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our independent non-executive Directors) consider it is most
suitable for Mr. Howard to hold both the positions of chief executive
officer and the chairman of our Board and the present
arrangements are beneficial and in the interests of our Company
and our Shareholders as a whole. Our Company will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer of our Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstances
of our Group as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are
delegated by the Board to the management of the Company, who
will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors so that the Board has a strong independent
element, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises the following five Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Neil David Howard (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Responsibilities of Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses
development, strategic formulation and are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

Responsibilities of Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors participate in the Board
meetings to bring in an independent judgment to bear on the issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts and scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high standard
of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so
as to protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the
Group.

Throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date through
to 31 March 2017, the Company has three independent non-
executive Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing
Rules that the number of independent non-executive directors must
represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less
than three, and that at least one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the
independent non-executive Directors have been independent and
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of
this report.
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Term of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 20 September 2016 and the Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (i) for a term of three years
commencing from 14 October 2016; and (i) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective terms. The term of the service
contracts and the letters of appointment may be renewed in
accordance with our Articles and the applicable Listing Rules.

Remuneration

Our Directors and our Senior Management receive remuneration in
the form of salaries, allowances and other benefits, including our
contribution on defined contribution retirement plans.

The aggregate amount of remuneration (including salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses, other benefits and contributions
to pension schemes) paid or payable to our Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$7.0 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Senior
Management for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
members of the Senior Management by band for the year ended
31 March 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration of the Senior Management by bands
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Save as disclosed in this report, (i) no remuneration was paid to our
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join, or upon joining, our Group; (i) no compensation was paid to,
or receivable by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 March 2017 for the loss
of office as director of any member of our Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any
member of our Group; and (iii) none of our Directors waived any
emoluments during the same period.

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director or none of the five
highest paid individuals has been paid in cash or shares or
otherwise by any person either to induce him to become, or to
qualify him as a Director, or otherwise for service rendered by him
in connection with the promotion or formation of us.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each of the Directors attended various trainings in the year ended
31 March 2017, including the training on duties and responsibilities
of directors of a listed company in Hong Kong, in the process of
the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The Company
arranges suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as part of their continuous
professional development.

Meetings of Board and Board Committees and Directors’
Attendance Records

Notice of regular Board meetings is served on all Directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board and Board committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board or Board committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the Senior
Management of the Company where necessary.

The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any
Director. The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings
record in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the meetings are held.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, no general meeting was
held while three Board meetings were held whereat the Board (i)
approved the share offer of the Company; (ii) reviewed and
approved the financial results for the six months ended 30
September 2016; (iii) considered and approved the overall
strategies and policies of the Group; (iv) considered and approved
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
the Senior Management; and (v) approved the share offer for the
listing of the Shares on the Main Board. The attendance of
individual Directors at the Board meetings is set out in the following
table:

BE_T—tF=A=1+—BILFE  ARALEET
BRAE MEFSRETZREFSIHNER
RAETTRMEE : () FH R ERE_FT - FNA
=+ BIENEARP RS ¢ (i) E BRI EREERE
RERBE: (VERLIEBERNRTEZERSRER
BHF BN B ¢ & (v) BRI I EAR ETETTA (D 3
EoENEEHFEESSRNCHRINTR

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Name of Directors EEHS BHE SERERE
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 7t 4= 3/8
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 7t & 3/3
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams 7t 4 3/3
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4 3/3
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FIALE 3/3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lap Shek Eddie
Wong (chairman), Mr. Richard Gareth Williams and Mr. Robert
Peter Andrews.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include: EZZEEeNTERENE

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting
the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed;

discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management
where necessary);

monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to
these findings;
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where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by such auditor to the Senior
Management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the Senior Management’s
response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors;

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

° reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

° reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement
of laws, rules and regulations; and

° considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Audit Committee
meeting was held whereat the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
unaudited consolidated financial results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 September 2016; and (ii) reviewed the internal
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control and risk management system of the Group. The attendance 3% :
of individual members was set out in the following table:
Attended/

Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEEREME BHE SEEHE
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FuAEAE 11
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4 11
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4 11
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Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our
Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews (chairman), Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong, Mr.
Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Neil David Howard and Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
the Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing a remuneration
policy;

° reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in
Code Provision B.1.2(c) (ii) of the CG Code (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and Senior Management).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held whereat the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the Senior Management. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEERERA BHE SEREE
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 11
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FIAEE 11
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams 5t 4 11
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 4t 4 11
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 74 1/1

Nomination committee

We established our Nomination Committee in compliance with the
CG Code on 20 September 2016. Our Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Neil David Howard
(chairman), Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong, Mr. Richard Gareth
Williams, Mr. Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. Steven Paul Smithers.
The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment of our Directors
and Senior Management.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board;

assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate; and reviewing the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing such policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief
executives.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held whereat the Nomination Committee (i) assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; (i)
recommended to the Board for consideration the re-appointment
of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the 2017 AGM; (iii)
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and (iv)
reviewed the Board diversity policy. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEGRERR CHE SEEHE
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 4t 4 11
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 4t 4 11
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FUREE 11
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4= i7a
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams 5t 4 11
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Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for securities transactions. Following specific enquires of
all Directors, all Directors confirm that they have compiled with the
required standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code from
the Listing Date up to 31 March 2017.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION

BDO Limited is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the fees paid to BDO Limited
for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group are
HK$890,000 (excluding the expenses on the audit and non-audit
service provided by BDO Limited related to the Share Offer of the
Company).

The fees charged by BDO Limited in respect of the non-auditing
services for the year are approximately HK$138,000.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. A statement
from the external auditors about its reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 75 to 80 of
this report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an
external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority
and to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies
set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of
the department’s business and implementation of the policies and
strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and the
assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board
believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes
seriously of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely
manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate
their understanding and compliance with the policy.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER
RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum
for dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of the
Group. The Articles allows a Shareholder entitled to attend and
vote to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on behalf
of the Shareholder and also provides that a proxy need not be a
Shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case
of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and in the case of all other general meetings at
least 10 clear business days before the meeting. The Company has
been in compliance with such code provision.
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All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
Shareholder meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2016 Revision). However, Shareholders who wish
to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
article 64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person for
election as a director, the procedures are available on the website
of the Company.
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Procedures for putting enquiries to the Company and
contact details

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company by mail to 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 Bonham
Strand West, Hong Kong or by email to ibi@ibi.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or by telephone at
(852) 2980-1333, who has been appointed by the Company to
deal with Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
there has not been any change in the Articles. The Articles are
available on the websites of the Company (www.ibi.com.hk) and
the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company
secretary of the Company is Mr. Yun Wah Man. He is the principal
and head of corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F. Chan &
Co., and a director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Limited. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Neil David
Howard, the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.
In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Yun Wah
Man has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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The Group is pleased to present the first ESG Report to express
the Group’s efforts towards sustainable practices and development.
The Group’s ESG Report has been set out in accordance with the
standards as set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in its ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

This ESG Report focuses on our sustainability approach and
performance in the environmental and social aspects of our
business primarily in Hong Kong in the reporting period from 1 April
2016 to 31 March 2017. The Group will continue to strengthen the
information collection of the business in both Hong Kong and
Macau in order to enhance the performance in environmental
concerns and to disclose relevant information in sustainable
development.

Established in 1997, our Group has grown to become one of the
region’s leading building contractors in the corporate, retail,
hospitality and education sectors in Hong Kong and Macau. Our
Group has completed hundreds of projects continuing to building
on our reputation on the back of our core principles of strong
communication, director involvement and staunch business ethics.

Our Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector including fitting-out projects and A&A projects. We entail the
overall responsibility for all aspects of project management,
coordination, safety and quality control but do not directly
undertake the construction process. Our extensive approved list of
specialist subcontractors are responsible for performing the labour
intensive and skilled trade works of the projects. The pollution
management and wastage treatment is directly controlled by
subcontractors while the Group provides pollution and wastage
treatment guidelines and plays a monitoring role to ensure the
treatments and controls are in compliance with the relevant
regulations. We also evaluate our subcontractors’ performance in
environmental aspects.

The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the reporting period.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION A. RER
Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects Limited, K £ [E jE T 2 A IBI Limited & IBI Projects Limited
have OHSAS 18001 (Safety Management Systems) B OHSAS 18001 (Y2 B I X ) 2 & K& ISO
certifications and ISO 14001: 2004 Environmental 14001 : 2004 IRIRE L XAE - Wikl EE
Management Systems Certification which is an internationally BRRBEBENREFHERROEZE o NEFEFX
recognised standard for the development of policies and EFRIEE . WHHONEH e RIBEEBENEE
procedures which deal with the environmental aspects of a TEREEET -

business’s practices. Our Group is in compliance with these
international standards and aims to act and conduct our
business in a socially and environmentally responsible

manner.
Our Group has an environmental compliance target of zero REBUZTHEFTLARREREAGRAE BHAETHR
prosecutions, and we are pleased to say that we have PBREE—_E—+tF=A=1+—HUIFEEKE
achieved zero prosecutions for the year ended 31 March HEFEEZ -

2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE
BREH

Prosecutions

LR
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Our Group does not directly deal with hazardous or non- REBUWHREZEBERMEEMBNEELES
hazardous wastes on our construction sites but we provide Exc BEeREERUHE A BEIEHEIILE
training and guidelines to our subcontractors on a project by B WEEBSEREBEUL TEREEARNESK

project basis and monitor the subcontractors to follow the
requirements with reference to the following legislation and

regulations:
Category Relevant laws and regulations
Rl HBERERER
General: > Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
B CRIBREBEIRIIN(E 499 F)
>  Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines
BB R EIF R
Alir: > Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
=R (ZERBFREFMEOINEI11E)
> Hong Kong Air Quality Objectives
BEBERERER
> Air Pollution Control (Construction Dust) Regulation (Cap. 311R)
(ERGREH (REIRER)RONEIIIRE)
Water: > Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
K OKBREIRAINE 358 %)
> Water Quality Objectives
KB ERT
Waste: > Summary Offences Ordinance (Cap. 228)
REY) - (A SRFAFRIRDINFE228F)
> Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59)
(IR TRELEDNELIE)
> Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
CEEMRERDIN(E 354 %)
> Public Cleansing and Prevention of Nuisances (Regional Council) By-Law
(Cap. 132BJ)
(AFRRFRY IEth#E (RETHE) WHIN(E 132BI &)
> Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132)
(AREERTEEFINE132F)
> Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations (Cap. 354C)
CEEMEIE (L 2EEY) (—RR) RPINE354CE)
> Practice Note for Authorised Persons 144: Control of Environmental Nuisance from

Construction Sites (August 1997)
RAIATEEBZ R 144 - EHREMBREIRIFERLE (1997 F8 )
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A.1.

A.2.

HERER®RE

Emission

The major source of air emissions that are directly
generated by our Group of companies is the indirect
energy emission resulting from the use of electricity,
including for heating and cooling, at our office and
project site offices. In order to reduce our carbon
footprint, we have implemented the measures listed in
the “A.2. Use of resources” section.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Use of resources
Office and project site office management

We have certain procedures in place for our employees
to follow in order to help reduce the amount of energy,
electricity used by and emissions generated from
appliances, electrical equipment and lighting that we
use in our offices.

>  Use of LED and T5 Fluorescent tubes instead of
incandescent light bulbs;

> Use of a master switch to turn off office
equipment and lighting during non-office hours;

> Purchase of environmentally-friendly electrical
appliances;

> Use of motion sensored lights to save electricity
in the office;

> Provide recycling bins in the office area;

> Post reminders in the pantry to encourage our
staff to use water efficiently; and

> Post green notes near photocopiers to encourage
our staff to think before they print, print double-
sided and reuse single-sided printed paper.
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A.3.

Construction sites management

Our Group understands the importance of resources
and have mechanisms in place to use the resources
obtained more efficiently. We provide proper training to
staff, subcontractors and site workers on how to use
the equipment and materials in a safe, productive and
efficient manner. New staff members are supplied with
training upon joining our Group while current staff are
supplied with refresher training approximately every six
months.

BB EE

AEBRPEROERNE - W EIZHHILA
EZRER - BMREL - nBEAMOEIA
REEEFI - HANAR2SBERR
BRAR - REBERNITARE TIARRH
BEYl - MRBETRERANEALAERSYE

RIFF o

TRAINING - MAN HOURS ATTENDED
Bl — RTHFEHE

>3000

We encourage our subcontractors to be mindful when
carrying out their duties so as to reduce waste and we
welcome any suggestions on managing or reducing
waste at the construction sites. We budget and buy
materials on as-needed basis to avoid over purchasing
of materials and to efficiently reduce the wastage at the
construction sites. We encourage our subcontractors
to continue using the remaining materials in future
projects to minimise the overall wastage at the
construction sites.

The Environmental and Natural Resources
Pollution control guideline

We provide guidance, briefing and training to sub-
contractors and site workers with reference to the Air

Pollution Control Ordinance and Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and its subsidiary regulations in Hong Kong.

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017

A.3.

hours
/INBE

BB ERERTRERIZERIR
& TECREAARERSR D AR
WHEZ - RARTRERELRBEYH
VA 0 38 [ SR B A KL I B OB A S SR i AR R
W - BAPIEE D BRI E BN R KIA
B BRERLEEMREERE -

BERRARER
SFREH S
BN EE2RB(ERITRE GG - OK

B ARE BRG] R M BRI A D 2R kit
BT ARMES - @R EIE -



We do not directly deal with the physical construction
work but we have project managers in charge to
monitor the air pollution and waste water treatment to
ensure it is in compliance with the regulations. We also
implement an environmental management system for
every project to encourage the subcontractors to use
appropriate pollution prevention measures before
construction work commences to minimise the adverse
impacts to air pollution and water quality.

We set appropriate air pollution control system
measures on site and waste water treatment
procedures for our subcontractors and our site
managers, safety and environmental officers and
foremen, to carry out site inspection procedures to
monitor the performance of the subcontractors and to
present their feedback during the evaluation process.

Waste management guideline — Hazardous and
Non-Hazardous waste

Our waste management plan controls our daily working
activities by controlling the categories of Reduction,
Avoidance, Recycling and Reusing and Disposal.

We ensure that we reduce waste through increasing
our efficiency, avoiding over purchasing of materials
and other methods in order to limit the amount of waste
that is generated during the course of our refurbishment
services.

Any waste that is hazardous is treated carefully and
disposed of properly to ensure that it is safe to the
public and in compliance with the regulations. For
waste to be disposed off-site, we nominate a specialist
waste disposal company for the disposal work
managed by the subcontractor and keep dockets of
the disposal for our record and checking.

In relation to the non-hazardous waste, our Group has
a system in place to record the quantities of different
wastes that are disposed. We separate recyclable
waste into four categories namely: metal, paper, plastic
bottle and aluminum cans. We temporarily store our
waste at a designated area and put them into separate
containers which are suitable for holding the waste.
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We dispose the waste off-site as soon as practicable in
order to optimise the storage space we have on-site.
We always maintain good housekeeping in the storage
area and we ensure that we handle all waste properly.
We plan each project to ensure that the issue of waste,
and its proper handling and disposal, is taken into
account and identify the disposal company we can use
to help us with the disposal.

Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (“LEED”) Projects

We have in the past engaged in a number of LEED
projects with our customers and have experience in
these types of projects. During the year ended 31
March 2017, we have successfully completed two
LEED projects for our customers. LEED projects are a
popular green building certification aimed at helping our
customers who choose to have LEED certification to be
environmentally responsible and use resources
efficiently in their refurbishment, redecoration design
and implementation. The LEED certification includes a
rating system for different aspects such as construction,
operation and design. We offer our customers LEED
design and implementation services should they wish to
have LEED certification as part of our refurbishment
services. LEED has different certification levels namely:
Certified, Silver, Gold and Platinum based on allocating
points on the human benefits and potential
environmental impacts. The higher the rating, the better
the design meets the different LEED requirements.

B. SOCIAL
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B.1. Employment

Our Group understands the importance of the impact
that employees have on the Group and our reputation
and aims to provide our employees with a happy,
healthy and safe working environment. As at 31 March
2017, approximately 20% of our employees had
worked for over 5 years and approximately 15% of our
employees had worked for more than 10 years in the
Group.
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Our staff handbook is well established and issued to all
staff for their reference pertaining to office rules and
benefits such as typhoon arrangements, annual leave,
working hours, office attire, jury duty, salary and lunch
hours as well as other rules and benefits. We provide
employees with Health and Safety and other
Developmental Training as well as having proper
whistleblowing procedures in place for our employees
to follow without fear of reprisal or receiving any
negative feedback.
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The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
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B.2. Health and Safety

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, are OHSAS 18001: 2007 Occupational Health
& Safety Management Systems Certified. This
certification sets out Occupational Health and Safety
Requirements and Best Practices. OHSAS 18001 is a
framework that sets out a range of standards that can
help our Group to put controls policies and procedures
in place to achieve good working conditions and
workplace health and safety. This framework is
internationally recognised as setting best practices and
provide certified companies with a range of benefits
such as identifying hazards and how to manage them,
creating good working conditions, reducing work place
accidents and engaging and motivating staff. We
understand the importance of Occupational Health and
Safety and aim to continually improve, reduce
workplace hazards, increase employee motivation and
be in compliance with OHSAS 18001 standards. For
details on training related to health and safety, please
refer to “B.3. Development and Training” below.

We provide staff with a modern, clean breakout area
which includes exercise bikes, showers, sofas, TV,
pantry and dining area in the headoffice. Further the
Group also provides staff with safety and health training
as well as an Employee Safety and Health memo for
their reference. The safety memo is for the benefit of
our staff to ensure that they use the office equipment
safely and that there is minimal chance of occupational
hazards taking place in our offices.

Apart from training, benefits and safeguards we have
for employees, we also advocate a healthy work-life
balance for all employees. We have team building
events such as soccer tournaments, long service
awards and our annual Christmas party, as well as
adhoc celebration lunches when we are awarded, or
completed, a project we take pride. We have quite a
number of long serving staff and we give recognition
and thanks to our loyal staff for their years of hard
dedication, loyal service and positive contribution to our
Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
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Development and Training

We provide Health and Safety training to all new staff
when they join us and to all regular staff on a bi-yearly
basis to ensure they understand the importance of
safety and how to operate the machines and keep the
site clear of hazards. We also have a Safety and
Environmental Officer in charge to oversee the site and
ensure that it is safe for staff members to carry out their
daily duties. We have an Environmental Management
Plan (EMP) for our refurbishment work which will be
followed by all team members, and the Safety and
Environmental Officer helps to supervise and monitor
the implementation of the EMP. These plans,
procedures and policies are in place to ensure we
provide a safe working environment and protect our
employees from hazards.

Labour Standards

We have an Equal Opportunity Policy in place which
explains our policy on having a work environment that
is free of discrimination and that all employees have
equal opportunity regardless of age, marital status,
pregnancy status, race and religion. We advocate a
work-life balance at the workplace and managers are
available to communicate with the staff to ensure the
staff to raise their concerns or suggestions for
management’s consideration.

Our Group also has an Anti Child and Forced Labour
Policy for our Company, employees, suppliers and sub-
contractors to follow. We do not employ or advocate
the employment of children or of people who are forced
to work. All workers are employed on a voluntary basis
with agreed terms and are not forced or coerced into
working for our Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
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B.5. Supply Chain Management

The Group maintains an approved suppliers and
subcontractor list. We perform assessment on new
suppliers and subcontractors and continue the
evaluation on an ongoing basis. We understand the
importance of environmental protection and we
encourage our suppliers and subcontractors to follow
our environmental management system.

We provide training and guidance to our subcontractors
for every project including our environmental
management system and relevant guidelines. All
subcontractors and suppliers are rated after the
completion of each job by our Group’s Tendering
Director, records of which are kept for our staffs’
reference. The rating is based on numerous aspects
such as quality, safety, environmental and social risk,
health and other aspects. We further perform annual
review on our suppliers and subcontractors
performance. We rate and discuss their performance in
different aspects including price, quality, delivery, health
and safety, as well as environmental and social aspects.
The evaluation record serves as the starting point to our
selection of subcontractors for our future projects.
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B.6. Product Responsibility

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, have ISO 9001: 2008 Quality Management
Systems Certification. This certification is an
internationally recognised qualification relating to
product quality and quality management systems.
There are quality principles relating to customer focus,
leadership, engagement of people, process approach,
improvement, evidence-based decision making and
relationship management. We take the quality of our
project delivery seriously and act in accordance with
the ISO principles and aim to ensure to continue have
high customer satisfaction and meet customer
expectations. The ISO 9001 helps to give us guidance
on best practices and policies for us to use to ensure
that our Quality Management Systems are maintained
at a high standard and that we can continue to make
improvements on customer satisfaction, employee
motivation and other current practices.

Our Group takes our obligation to customers seriously
and aims to continue delivering high quality fitting out
and A&A services for customers across the region. We
engage with our customers and ask for feedback from
each project. We work with our customers to deliver
desired results and strive to maintain a high degree of
customers satisfaction. Our Group’s Directors are in
charge of making sure that we can meet our
customers’ requirements in areas such as quality,
environmental concerns, safety, cost, time schedule,
customer data protection and customer privacy. We
ensure that all customer data is used and kept in strict
confidence in accordance with our customers’
requirements.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
1o services provided and methods of redress.
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B.7.

B.8.

Anti Corruption

Our Group has an Anti-Corruption and Whistleblowing
Policy. We provide our staff with proper whistleblowing
channels so that they can raise concerns when needed,
without fear of reprisal or any negative impacts.

We encourage our employee to voice out their opinion
and our Group will not take any negative action against
staff for voicing out their concerns through the proper
whistleblowing channels. Our Group fully supports
employees to raise concerns in good faith and the
mentioned issue will be discussed by management and
dealt within a professional and appropriate manner.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

The Group cares for the youth and those who are less
fortunate in society and we aim to do our part in
supporting the local community by making donations
and supporting local charities. We have joined the
industrial attachment programme organised by the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE) and
provide internship for its students every year. We share
our experiences to the students and provide an
opportunity for them to get some working experiences
so to help them to plan their career. During the year
ended 31 March 2017, we have also supported a
number of charities such as Operation Santa Claus and
Changing Young Life Foundation. We also encourage
our employees to contribute to charities with one of our
staff achieving 100 hours of volunteer service during
2016 achieving a Silver Award for Volunteer Service
from the Social Welfare Department of Hong Kong. We
will continue to do our part to help those who are in
need and are less fortunate in society by making further
future donations and encouraging staff to get involved
in charity works.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS

|IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IBl GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IBI Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 140, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

Refer to note 4(j), 5(i) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recognised revenue from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau (the “Construction Services”)
of approximately HK$615,376,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017.

The Group recognises revenue from Construction Services
according to the Group’s management’s estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contracts as well as the percentage of
completion of the Construction Services which requires the
estimation of contract costs of each contract. Contract costs of
individual contracts are determined based on budget of the
contract which was prepared by the management. The recognition
of revenue and the estimation of the outcome of construction
contracts require significant management judgement, in particular
with respect to estimating the cost to complete and the amounts of
variations and claims to be recognised.

QOur response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s recognition of contract
revenue included:

° Comparing contract sum and budgeted contract costs to
respective signed contracts and approved budgets on a
sample basis;

° Discussing with the management of the Group and testing
the supporting evidence to evaluate the reasonableness of
the management’s estimation of the budgeted contract
costs;
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° Checking the existence and valuation of variations to
correspondences with customers on a sample basis; and

° Obtaining an understanding from management of the Group
about how the approved budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were determined.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate number: P02410

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SERERkEMAEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHAT
Revenue W %5 7 615,376 661,082
Cost of sales SHE A (557,012) (607,107)
Gross profit ES| 58,364 53,975
Other income and gain H AU A R Wz 8 568 367
Administrative and other operating TR REEMEER
expenses (43,352) (20,419)
Finance costs BB KA 10 (98) (190)
Profit before income tax expense  BRFTSHEI X AIER 9 15,482 33,733
Income tax expense FTS B 11 (4,685) (5,464)
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNRZEB AL
income for the year 10,797 28,269
Earnings per share: SRER : 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR5 (B 1.6 4.7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR MR R &
As at 37 March 2077
R-ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FHExT FHIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 15 2,331 374
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from customers for JEWEFHE X TIEFIA
contract work 16 120,700 153,852
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE At e F8 17 63,607 79,082
Pledged deposits BHEBER 18 15,947 18,841
Tax recoverable EIEE e 227 -
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEY 122,341 51,594
Total current assets MEEERE 322,822 303,369
Current liabilities REAEE
Amounts due to customers for EREFHE A TIRFIE
contract work 16 - 875
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENRIE 19 185,371 228,368
Bank borrowings RITIER 20 - 2,028
Tax payables &A% I8 1,302 6,402
Total current liabilities mEAREAsE 186,673 237,673
Net current assets RBEESRE 136,149 65,696
NET ASSETS EERE 138,480 66,070
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital R A 21 8,000 1
Reserves E 130,480 66,069
TOTAL EQUITY R 138,480 66,070

On behalf of directors

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EF
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RERES

Steven Paul SMITHERS
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERESER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

Share Share Merger Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
&N B3R E EOtRE RE B F et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT TR FHT FHL FHIT
(Note 21) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(FftzE21) (HYEE®) (B 32 (i)
At 1 April 2015 NR-E—HEWNA—H 1 - (13,512 51,312 37,801
Profit and total comprehensive  £E 3 7 &%
income for the year 2HEW AL - - - 28,269 28,269
At 31 March 2016 R-EB—RE
=A=+-—8H 1 - (13,512) 79,581 66,070
Arising from the Reorganisation BHEMES ©] - 1 - -
Issue of shares by public offer  FEEB AR E RACEXTT
and placing (Note 21(e)) B fn (i sE21(e)) 2,000 88,000 - - 90,000
Share issues expense BRDEEITRX - (8,387) - - (8,387)
Conversion of B-shares to Bifh&Et AL mR AR
ordinary shares and 1b817 (MFE21(c) &
capitalisation issue (Note 21(c) ~ Fif3T21 (d)))
and Note 21 (d) 6,000 (6,000) - - -
Profit and total comprehensive £ A1 Il }2 2 B A
income for the year Pk - - - 10,797 10,797
Dividend declared and paid B 5k SRR B
(Note 13) (FF5E13) - - - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2017 N-EB—+t&E
=HA=+—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 70,378 138,480
Notes: MisE -
(i)  Share premium (i) BRHRE
Share premium account of the Group represents the excess of the AEB R REREMERZIEBLE AR D EITROEE
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares HIED o
issued.
(i)  Merger reserve i) EOHREB

The merger reserve represents the difference between the investment
costs in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Group’s subsidiaries.

BHFEEBERNBARNBRERAERARETHBEARD
BITRAE{EZ HMER °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

mERiERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
= i N
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
5T F#&T T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHEERE
Profit before income tax expense % B 15554 3 X2 B s A1) 15,482 33,733
Adjustments for: HUATSEAE
Depreciation e 655 252
Interest expenses FERX 98 190
Interest income LB A (352) (5)
Recovery of impairment loss on trade SRIFERHE 5 UGB
receivables previously recognised FEEEREE = (362)
Operating profit before working LIEE S HB L E G
capital changes 15,883 33,808
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FEWEEHA Y TR
customers for contract work B (3Ehn) 33,152 (103,837)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other H 5 R H MW FIE
receivables B (3Ehn) 15,475 (13,292)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other 5N E MR TR
payables O, /& m (42,997) 85,114
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JERNEPHE K TIERIA
customers for contract work G4,/ (875) 297
Cash generated from operations LETSE S 20,638 2,090
Interest paid BRFLE (98) (190)
Income tax paid ERFEH (10,012) (2,071)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESTEFRE,(FTA)
operating activities R&FHE 10,528 (171)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHREESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENEE (2,612) (156)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEEBEFEZORL, (3 m) 2,894 (14,319)
Interest received EFIE 352 5
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFEE(FrA)
investing activities HEH8E 634 (14,470)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHEERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERATISRIA 19,000 3,000
Repayments of bank borrowings IRITEREN (21,028) (4,598)
Net proceeds from issue of new shares by FRAFEE RELEETT
public offer and placing after share AR 1 P15 SR IBF 58
issue expenses (FOBR B TR &) 81,613 -
Repayment to shareholders MR E R = (14,388)
Dividend paid EAARE 13 (20,000) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEETBHHRE(FTA)
financing activities REFE 59,585 (15,986)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeEREESEEY
cash equivalents #in, CRd) B4 70,747 (30,627)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRSRESEEY
beginning of year 51,594 82,221
Cash and cash equivalents at EREERBRELEEY
end of year 122,341 51,594
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReERRESEENEHRIN
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand wITRFERE 122,341 51,594
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 April 2016 under
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand
Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located at 3/F, Bangkok Bank
Building, 18 Bonham Strand West, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are to act as a building
contractor focusing on providing renovation services as a
main contractor for property projects in the private sector in
Hong Kong and Macau.

In connection with the Listing, the Company underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”).

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” of
the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September 2016
(the “Prospectus”). The Reorganisation involved only
inserting new holding companies on top of an existing group
and has not resulted in any change of economic substance.
The Company became the holding company of its
subsidiaries now comprising the Group on 13 May 2016.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements were
prepared as a continuation of the existing group based on
merger accounting as if the Reorganisation had been
completed on 1 April 2015 and the current group structure
had always been in existence. The consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended 31 March 2017 include the results and changes in
equity of the companies now comprising the Group from the
earliest date presented or since their respective dates of
incorporation, whichever was shorter, as if the current group
structure had been in existence. No adjustment is made to
reflect fair values, or to recognise any new assets or liabilities
as a result of the Reorganisation.

—RER  EERENEE

ARARRZZE—R"FHUANBRERASHESED
FBRERRE(—NAAN—FEZGERE  KKE
MERT) EREHES MK AERRBRAR -
EsH 9 S R ik 4 89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman Islands © £%&
BEEEEMIUN BB AT 18RBARIT
KE3H#E o

ARBEOR -_F—A"EF+ATHBEEREBS
RHARAR (TBRA]) EREM(TEW]) -

ARBIRREEB AR - AEETBEEBIER
IR RHEBH RS OEEARRE  BERER
MRFIFLE MY TR B HOARRGERY -

ARRIB EHETEA(TEAD -

BANFERERARR AR/ T —RNFNA
“thARMAEER(TBRER]D [EL - ZAR
NERE| —F - EHREPEHER AR ZEE
RAKEZ b KBEERT EIEESEFRE -
ARBRZE—R"FRAT=AX/BERAKAR
SEXMBARMNERAR  MORHAHEFE
BARBEEREELERFRGEYHIERE - B0
EHER - ZE-AFWNA-BEREREEER
B-HERE HE_ZT—+tF=A=1+—BHLHF
ERGEaBEkEtE2HRaERARGEREE
HREREARAKNASEZARBRREZ2IEH
RS B R B AR A S B HIPAR (A BEE R
B)NFRERERES)  HNBEBEEERE BT
o EEHBABRARRATE  HESHBER
ERHEEXRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

2. RMNBERYBREEAN(EEMBRSE
R )

(a) RMHESETEBUBEREED — B

1 April 2016

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle
Disclosure Initiative

“E-AEENA-HEBER

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to
use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s share of
other comprehensive income from equity accounted
interests in associates and joint ventures is split
between those items that will and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as a single
line item within those two groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not
previously used revenue-based depreciation methods.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 —
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments define bearer plants and require
biological assets that meet the definition to be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 16. The agricultural produce of
bearer plants remains within the scope of HKAS 41.
The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has no bearer
plants.

RMNBEBMBBRELEN((EBHBERS
2R 1) (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

88

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. The amendments are applied
retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company has not
elected to apply the equity method in its separate
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 — Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements for an
intermediate parent entity is available to a subsidiary of
an investment entity (including investment entities that
account for their subsidiaries at fair value rather than
consolidating them). An investment entity parent will
consolidate a subsidiary only when the subsidiary is not
itself an investment entity and the subsidiary’s main
purpose is to provide services that relate to the
investment entity’s investment activities. A non-
investment entity applying the equity method to an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity
may retain the fair value measurements that associate
or joint venture used for its subsidiaries. An investment
entity that prepares financial statements in which all its
subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or
loss should provide the disclosures related to
investment entities as required by HKFRS 12. The
amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company is neither an
intermediate parent entity nor an investment entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11— Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply the relevant
principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations when it
acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in that standard. The principles
of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a
joint operation if an existing business as defined in that
standard is contributed by at least one of the parties.
The amendment are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not
acquired or formed a joint operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KB BUBEREERN(EBHBRKRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) 8| ]) (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b)
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’
HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with

HKFRS 15 Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)2

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments will only affect financial statement
disclosures and will not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

As the Group does not have debt instruments
measured at fair value, the amendments will not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

92

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at
amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 may impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. In particular, the new impairment
requirements may result in earlier recognition of credit
losses of the Group’s trade and other receivables, if
any. The directors are in the process of assessing the
quantitative effect of these requirements, and
accordingly it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the quantitative effect of HKFRS 9 until the
assessment has been completed.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

94

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 may impact on the Group’s
reported financial performance, financial position and
disclosures due to the application of the new revenue
recognition framework. The directors of the Company
are in the process of assessing the quantitative effect of
these requirements, and accordingly it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the quantitative
effect of HKFRS 15 until the assessment has been
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

As set out in Note 23 below, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
of the Group in respect of office premises and
warehouse as at 31 March 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$5,824,000. The directors of the
Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting policy would
result in significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance but it is expected that the Group has to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use assets, and that certain portion of the future
minimum lease payments under the Group’s operating
leases will be required to be recognised in the
Company’s consolidated statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The Group
will also be required to remeasure the lease liabilities
upon the occurrence of certain events such as a
change in the lease term and recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liabilities as an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets. In addition,
payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be presented within financing activities in the
Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of other new or revised standards would not
result in significant impact on amounts reported in the
Group’s financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

96

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries other
than IBI Macau Limited, and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

98

(b)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment and
fittings

5 years

3 — 5 years or over the
leases terms, whichever
the shorter

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (Note 4())).

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from the continued use
of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets are
initially measure at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost, less any
identified impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

100

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

—  granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and bank borrowings are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

102

(c)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the

transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligations specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term, high liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

U]

Operating leases

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

104

(f

(9)

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve. Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

106

(h)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Other employee entitlements

(iv)

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the services received is measured by
reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(M

0

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the stage of completion which is
determined by reference to the cost incurred up to the
date of statement of financial position as a percentage
of total estimated costs. Foreseeable losses from
contracts are fully provided for when they are identified.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts for variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs
comprise direct materials, costs of subcontracting,
direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and
fixed construction overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and contract costs
associated with the construction contract are
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of reporting period. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that will probably be
recoverable, and contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

108

)

(k)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as amounts due from customers
for contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for
contract work.

Under the stage completion method, the percentage of
contract margin to be recognised as profit at end of the
reporting period is determined as the ratio of contract
costs incurred at end of reporting period to the
expected final contract costs.

Retention monies, represented amounts of progress
billings which are receivables from customers or
payable to sub-contractors when conditions specified
in the contracts undertaken are satisfied, and are
included in the statements of financial position under
“Trade and other receivables” and “Trade and other
payables” respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U]

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

110

(m) Borrowings costs

(n)

Borrowings costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowings costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(n) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

U

(i)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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112

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have significant risks of resulting in material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are as follows:

(i) Recognition of contract revenue

The Group recognises its contract revenue according
to the percentage of completion of the individual
contracts. The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders
and contract claims prepared for each contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted contract income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted contract costs which
mainly comprise subcontracting charges and cost of
materials are prepared by the management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and
the experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred and the value of work performed as
certified by quantity serveyors where applicable.
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HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of receivables

The impairment policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on management’s evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables and on
the specific circumstances for each account.
Judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial condition of these customers
was to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance will be
required.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The executive directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision-makers of the Group, review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used to make strategy
decision.

Management regularly reviews the operating results from a
project-based perspective. The reportable operating segment
derives its revenue primarily from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the
private sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Accordingly, the
Group has only one business segment and no further analysis
of this single segment is considered necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE—FT—+F=FA=1—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(@) Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas
— Hong Kong and Macau.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers:

2R E ()

(a)

AR

AEBEMEEEMEREEE — FER
R

TR ARAKER B INBEF AR
D

Hong Kong e 520,600 609,751
Macau SELPY 94,776 51,331
615,376 661,082

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
non-current assets (“Specified non-current
assets”):

TR FHAKEIFRDEE ([BEHFR
BEE N

Hong Kong H5B 2,315 334
Macau SR PY 16 40
2,331 374
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e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEPERE (
(b) Information about major customers (b) BEEFTEEFHER
Revenue from major customers, where each of them KETEEFNUH(BEEZEEEAEEK
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are =AY 10% sk A B) Salan T
set out below:
2017 2016
—E—tHF RN
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT THsI0
Customer | ZE| 168,639 163,195
Customer I ZEI 83,539 126,224
Customer Il ZEI 71,507 N/A T~ FB
Customer IV ==V N/A ~EHA 185,970
7. REVENUE 7. W&
Revenue, which is also the Group'’s turnover, represents e (MMAREEREER)IEFRNREETRZRA -
construction work income during the year.
8. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 8. HftW AR Wz
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE IR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THIT
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 352 5
Recovery of impairment loss on LR E 5 RN GIERE
trade receivables previously recognised e RO - 362
Others Eb 216 -
568 367
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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116

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BAFEBBEXANER

Profit before income tax expense is arrived after charging:

B TS % B S e F) TS AR FIRR N7 & IR1RE R

2017 2016
—E—+tF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 37 B
— Current year — KEE 890 350
— (Oven)/under provision in prior year — BEFEE (BREAE) B
T2 (90) 17
Depreciation e 655 252
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: 8 T (BIRESEHH) ¢
— Salaries and allowances — &4 N&oERL 62,417 48,109
— Contributions on defined contribution — REHEFGRWETEIHER
retirement plans 1,476 1,148
63,893 49,257
Minimum lease payments under LEHEB TRIEMAERNK
operating leases 2,450 1,703
Foreign exchange loss, net B 5 5 15 R 18 -
Listing expenses WX 16,333 573
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. AMERAK
2017 2016
—E—tF —FERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Bank interest on bank borrowings wholly ~ ZBRAFRNEZKEEMNRITER
repayable within five years KSR T B 98 190
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FiEBiR X
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated FEBRBRLEMEEBERMBEMEHAXEER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 5
represents:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEATTE — BBFEH
— provision for the year — FAEME 3,705 5213
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — BT EBEEEE (43) (38)
3,662 5,175
Current tax — overseas BVEREEIE — Ao
— provision for the year — FREE 1,023 289
4,685 5,464
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) BB RIS %R?;ziﬁwﬁuﬂ%p%mmﬂm 16.5% (=F
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. — N 1 16.5%)F

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Macau and

RIFRFIERDERERUAMERRFIBALG T

with the short-term tax incentives granted by the Macau MR IERE  AEBERMHMBARREZS
Government, the Group’s subsidiary in Macau was subject to E—RNERZE—RAFT_A=T—HLEWBF
complementary tax at the rate of 12% for taxable profits over &+ 78 3k T e 45k B R P9 5 600,000 7T LA _E A9 FE
the tax threshold of MOP600,000 for the tax years ended 31 ARMOEF] - T 12% B R ANFTIS R o B

December 2016 and 2015. The Macau Government has not
yet announced the tax threshold for the tax year ending 31
December 2017.

RIS R AR R, -

BN ASHEBE—_ES—+&E+-_A=+—81t

Taking account of the above short-term tax incentive, the
directors estimate that the Group’s subsidiary in Macau will pay
or paid complementary tax at the effective rates of 11.2% and
7.4% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively.

%%Nﬁ&iwﬁﬁmlﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ AEER
FINBEAGIREBEZE -_T—+tF R _T— X F=A
z+—Eiirﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁzaiﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂ?“ﬁm 2% &
7.4% SR ARFT ANE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

Frig#ia < ()

FRFERELSE 2EKERPRITEHRE A
s AEE BRI T ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHIT
Profit before income tax expense B PTAS B S A 7l 15,482 33,733
Tax charge calculated at Hong Kong BEBNEHBE16.5%TE
profits tax rate of 16.5% BT IR B 32 2,555 5,566
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BERBRK GO B2
tax purposes (339) O
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AT X TG £
tax purposes 3,044 132
Effect of different tax rate of the subsidiary ~ FARFI 464 E’]W%
operating in Macau TRABENFE (480) (204)
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (43) (38)
Tax effect of tax loss and other RERTTEEE R E M
temporary differences not recognised EENT BT E (52) 9
Income tax expense Frig®if X 4,685 5,464

The Group did not have any unused tax losses available for
offset against future profits during the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016.

No deferred tax has been provided in the consolidated
financial statements as there were no material temporary
differences during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2017

12. EEFMH S FMALIRSREEE

A

() E=HM

EEHMENT

BE—F—tHF=A=1+—HIFE

Contribution
Salaries, on defined
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total
REMHK
Fe - 28 Bk
fie REMER Mg HEf by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET  TRR  TER TR TR
Executive directors HTEE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 112 2,184 1,000 18 3,314
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 112 2,198 1,000 18 3,328
Independent non-executive directors BUKHTEE
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 112 - - - 112
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 112 - - - 112
Lap Shek Eddie WONG Rl 112 - - - 112
Total @ 560 4,382 2,000 36 6,978
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST

120

12. EE5FMH S FMALIRSREERE

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR N ()
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EZHM(E)

Year ended 31 March 2016

BE-—FE—NNF=ZHA=+—HILFE

Contribution

Salaries, on defined

allowances contribution

and other  Discretionary retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total

REMT

e 2 47
we  REMEN ByfEiea BE5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT

Executive directors HITEE

Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD - 2,147 750 18 2,915
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS - 1,978 750 18 2,746
- 4125 1,500 36 5,661

Richard Gareth WILLIAMS, Robert Peter ANDREWS
and Lap Shek Eddie WONG were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors on 20 September
2016.

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

12. S5 HSFMALIRSREEE

(&)

(b)

The five highest paid individuals for the year include two
(2016: two) directors. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2016: three) non-director highest paid individuals

for the year are as follows:

EERSHFMAL

TR AEEaFHALIEEMA(ZF
—ARFMBR)EF - HB=ZA(ZFT KX
F:ZR)FEERIFHALIRAFEN
FEan

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ % - 288 X E A1 T 6,031 4,147
Contributions on defined contribution HEHFCRIRET2IME R

retirement plans 36 54

6,067 4,201

The number of non-director highest paid individuals
whose emoluments felt within the following bands for
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

BE_ T+t T-RF=ZA=1+—H
LEE - HFMTR T IIBENFEERSFH
BHA LRI AZIAT ¢

2017 2016

—B—tF —B—XEF

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

AE AEK

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =870 2 1,000,000 57T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 77T = 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %8 7T £ 2,000,000 77T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 /%8 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T £ 3,000,000/8 7T 1 -

The remaining highest paid individuals are directors of
the Company whose emoluments is reflected in the

analysis presented in Note 12(a) above.

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, none of the five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years

ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

HRESHFMALRARRES  EHFHMR
EXFIFE12() R 252 T AR

BHE-_ZT—tFN_FT—RF=-A=+—H
IEFE AEEBERAEA TS T AT
EMEH - 1ERBE I A S B g 42
B EABEBRE - WiN REBEZT—

ER_E-RNEZA=t+—HIFE#MER
B F A T HER R EREEAEH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST 12.

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management who are not directors were within the
following bands:

EEFM RSFMALRSREEE
(&)

(c) SREEEHMH

ENHENIFEESRNEREEXBHFHHN
RT5IEE:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE AH
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 702 1,000,00078 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 752 1,500,000 57T = 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T 2 2,000,000 /5% 7T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 7% 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000/8 7T 1 -
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT THBIT
Dividend declared and paid (Note (i) B 5 R Bk A% (BTEE () 20,000 -
Proposed final dividend (Note (ii)) i AR HARR B (B3 (i) 8,000 -
28,000 -

Notes: ik

(i) On 11 June 2016, the Directors declared a dividend of HK$20.0
million to the then shareholders of the Company, which was paid
on 23 September 2016. Investors who became the shareholders
of the Company after the Listing were not entitled to such dividend.

(i) The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March
2017 of HK1.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting to HK$8.0
million has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The final dividend declared subsequent to 31 March 2017 has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2017 is based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$10,797,000 (2016:
approximately HK$28,269,000) and on the weighted average
number of 692,602,740 (2016: 600,000,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of 600,000,000 ordinary
shares derived for calculation of basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 March 2016 represented the number of
ordinary shares of the Company after completion of the
Reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue as defined in the
paragraph headed “Share Offer and Capitalisation Issue” in
the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” in the Prospectus, as if they had been in issue
throughout that period.

Dilutive earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share because the Group had no diluted potential shares
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

14. BRER)

HE-Z—+tFZA=Z1+—HLEFENEBRER
AR DHERAR A G HEE ARG REF X 10,797,000
BIT(ZZT—7RF © 428,269,000 7)) MFEAE
97T B AN 19 2692,602,740 L (ZZF —7<
£ 600,000,000 %) 5+ & -

Rt ERE T -ANE=-A=T-BIFENST
& EL 7 23 )15 /9 X 38 A% N4 - ¥5 £ 600,000,000
B HEREARENLET(ER ARRERIE
£ EBHRATRE] B [RHBEREAR(LE
7] —B)ERENARRLEIREE  BUZE
AP Z BRI B 37T o

HRAEERBE_Z—tFR_T—RF=A
St BLEFEYEEAEERD  REBFE
HEREERNEERERBNER -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - WERRE
Office
Furniture equipment
and and
fixtures fittings Total
REARBEE BAREBER
®E ®E st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHIT T FHIT
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2015 R-ZZE—HFNMA—H 11 3,169 3,180
Additions B - 156 156
At 31 March 2016 RZEBE—RF=ZA=1+— 11 3,325 3,336
Additions =T - 2,612 2,612
At 31 March 2017 R-ZF—+tH=A=1—H 11 5,937 5,948
Accumulated depreciation Zitire
At 1 April 2015 RZE—HFMHA—H 1 2,709 2,710
Charge for the year FRIHE 2 250 252
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=+—H 3 2,959 2,962
Charge for the year FERITE 2 653 655
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=H=+—H 5 3,612 3,617
Net carrying value ERMEFEE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=+—H 6 2,325 2,331
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=A=+—H 8 366 374
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

16. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS 16. B (B BEFMEHNIREFE
FOR CONTRACT WORK

The following table sets out details of the amounts due from/ THREVASREDRRER (EM)BEPHAEY
(to) customers for contract work as at the end of each TREFIEE -
reporting period:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHIT

Costs incurred to date plus recognised S B EAERRA
profits B #7057 1,286,087 952,478
Less: Progress bilings to date W IE ST REER (1,165,387) (799,501)
120,700 152,977
Amounts due from customers e R FFIE 120,700 153,852
Amounts due to customers FEREFRIE = (879)
120,700 152,977

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EZRHEMWEWRIA

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THIT
Billings receivable (Notes (i) and (i) JE U AR 3 (B 5 () R (1)) 25,472 40,064
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts (Note (i) 33 : S BEEE (BT EE (i) - -
Trade receivables E 5 RINGIE 25,472 40,064
Retention receivables (Notes (iv) and (v)) JE IR BB 7 A (M 5 (v) B2 (v)) 36,694 35,304
Deposits and other receivables e R E b e WGRIE 1,014 468
Prepayments TEfTRIE 427 3,246
63,607 79,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The credit period granted to customers on final and progress
billings is generally between 14 and 60 days from the invoice date.

(i) The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) at the

17. ES R HEMEWRIE (E)

B

) BRTEFPEEFRLTIREERAERE RN F#
ZRAMIEM14E60H -

(i) HEREHR BHREFENGREE) RERA

end of each reporting period based on the invoice date is as B RRE DT AT -
follows:

2017 2016
—ZT—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 21,653 38,350
31-60 days 31E260H 2,138 138
61-90 days 61Z290H 624 1,318
Over 90 days HB3E90 H 1,057 258
25,472 40,064

The age analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) as of the end of
reporting period that are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

BEREHREE AL EME R KRR ENE 5 ERFIE
(BBE) MERE DT T

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR 8 BTN R (E 23,791 38,350
Less than 1 month past due BEA R 1 ME A = -
1 to 3 months past due w1 = 3@ A 624 1,456
Over 3 months past due BHRSE A LA £ 1,057 258
1,681 1,714
25,472 40,064

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired primarily relate
to the Group’s main customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there have not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

BE AR J8 H TR B R (B M) ' 5 R MR R TR 3 B T A0 8 40RO
MARETIEREFARH -

ERHENERENE DRUGRIEEZ A ERNEEER RIT
THELBNBLEFPER - ENEERLR ERERS &
REEERWESANE - BERDIRE AR BEKE - &
BARZSERELRERE - AREYERZSERTE
EERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

17. ES R EMERFE (E)

MiaE - (&)
(i) BHEWGIBRRERBZESMNT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
At beginning of year REY) = 362
REBREEE - (362)

Recovery of impairment loss previously recognised Y (@] %t Al

At end of year RER

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, no trade receivables of the Group
were individually determined to be impaired.

The Group recognises impairment loss on individual assessment
based on the accounting policy stated in Note 4(c)(ii).

(iv) As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s retention receivables
were not yet past due.

V) As at 31 March 2017, retention receivables of HK$10,579,000

(2016: HK$6,312,000) were expected to be recovered beyond
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

18. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

RZE—tFR-_ZE-R"F=ZA=+—H FEEHN
B 5 FEMCRIR L S {E B TE AARLE -

AR B AZ N 5T A(C)(i) P 8 & 5T BOR FERR AE Bl 7Y 5 #O 3R
B -

V) RIFB—AFR_ZF-RF=ZA=+—0 FTEED
FEWR B SRIA R AR o

v RZFE—tF=ZA=+—H BRREBNRHE

10,579,000/ 7T (ZZ — /N : 6,312,000 7T ) 78 &7
RS BARER T @A EKE -

18. BEAEFR

2017 2016

—E—+t5F —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Pledged deposits with a bank RIBTTHEEIRF 4,427 10,821
Pledged deposits with an insurer RIRBE A BRI B RF 5K 11,520 8,020
15,947 18,841

Pledged deposits are placed with a bank and an insurer as EEBEREHRRIRITRRBR AR - 1EAZIRTT

securities for the performance bonds issued by the bank and
insurer to certain customers on their projects. The pledged
deposits will be released when the bank or insurer are
satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under the
performance bonds.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19. EZ R EMEMAFRE

2017 201 6
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHT
Trade payables (Notes (i) B S EIE (MRE6) 14,361 26,612
Accruals for costs of contract work BN TIRKAETER 129,306 163,328
Retention payables (Note (ii)) FERHR BB 2R 18 (B3 (i) 34,068 32,195
Other payables and accruals HENRIERERTER 7,636 6,233
185,371 228,368
Notes: MoaE

0] The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, as 0] REMEHR - BHENFIBREZAHNERRDON

at the end of each reporting period is as follows: mr
2017 2016
—E—+F N
HK$’009 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days 0&30H 13,875 21,044
31-60 days 31E60H 194 4,025
61-90 days 61290H - 1,147
Over 90 days 90 HIA L 292 396
14,361 26,612

The credit period granted by suppliers is generally between 14 and
60 days from the invoice date and subcontractors is generally
within 14 days after receipt of payment from customers.

(i) As at 31 March 2017, retention payables of HK$3,974,000 (2016:
HK$3,839,000) were expected to be settled beyond twelve

months after the end of the reporting period.

20. BANK BORROWINGS

L\Fgﬁ?’*%w*ﬁﬁﬁﬂ BN TEHZEAHRMN14E60
a?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ MAWEEFNRE14
EIW

(i) -
3,974, oooﬁén(_ =
ME RS RERT =

20. RITER

—tEF=A=+—R BENRE KA
— 4 : 3,839,0003870) IR
fE A& #EE -

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THIT
Current liabilities =R
Unsecured and interest-bearing bank  ZE#f# % 3t S R1T1E5
borrowings
— Bank borrowings due for repayment on — BAIRENRSN —FRERIRIT
demand or within one year (Note (i) & = (B () = 2,028

Note:

(i) As at 31 March 2016, the bank borrowings comprised a borrowing
of HK$1.2 million which bore interest at a flat rate at 4.5% per
annum and was guaranteed by Neil David HOWARD and a
borrowing of HK$0.8 million which bore interest at a flat rate at
4.8% per annum and was guaranteed by Neil David HOWARD.

Z—XNF=ZA=1+—8 RITERFE—FKF
= & 4.5% 51 2.3 #1 Neil David HOWARD 42 £ #&
1E|TJ\1 2EHEBBI UWRERFTEFEL48%:TE
Neil David HOWARD $e £ (R 6 £ Z 0.8 B &7

ESS RSPz
° EE-BKHDH
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

21.

128

SHARE CAPITAL 21. A&

The share capital as at 31 March 2017 in the consolidated BEMBARAKRAIN _E—F= A=+ —HOBREER

statement of financial position represented the issued share NAMBETRA - FIEWMT -

capital of the Company and as follows:

Number of
ordinary Number of
Notes shares HK$ B-Shares HKS$
TER B &%
i L] BT #E BT

Authorised: EE

At 6 April 2016 (date of RZE—RFMANH

incorporation) GaipavA=E:c)) (@) 37,999,900 379,999 100 1

Change due to conversion of Bl & AT @AY

B-Shares to ordinary shares oy (© 100 1 (100) 1)
Increase in authorised share & E AR ANIZ N
capital (©) 9,962,000,000 99,620,000 - -
At 31 March 2017 NZE—+F
=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 - -
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE:
At 6 April 2016 (date of RZE—REMARH
incorporation) GaliizavAsE:c)) (@) 1 - - -
Issue of shares BT (b) 899 9 100 1
Conversion of B-Shares to Bt AL Ak
ordinary shares (©) 100 1 (100) 1)
Capitalisation issue BEARLELT @) 599,999,000 5,999,990 - -
Issue of shares by public offer BB AR IE Rt &
and placing BTk ©) 200,000,000 2,000,000 - -
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—tfF
=A=+—H 800,000,000 8,000,000 - -

Notes: BE -

(@)  The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with @ ARFARE-—RENANBERSHESEMKILE
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 6 April 2016 with initial EFRRARRDT - Y1 E A % 380,000 7T + 7
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 37,999,900 #%37,999,900 i 3 i [E {E.0.01 /8 7T 19 & & ik }2 100
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and 100 B-class shares of BEREECOVEITHBREM (BR]) - FAA - 2
HK$0.01 each (“B-Shares”). On the same date, one ordinary EREE MG RE ARIT RS BERARERIR S -
share was issued for cash at par to the initial subscriber.

()  On 14 April 2016, one ordinary share was transferred from the b)) R-T-RFOA+TMA - 9HREAREEO0.O
initial subscriber to the shareholder of the Company at par of BT — B BEEETARRIRR - MARR R
HK$0.01; and 899 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and 100 RRR B 2 [ 317 899 B AR EI (B 0.01 78 TL B ik o
B-Shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by the 100 B A E{E0.01 B TR B
Company to its shareholders.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

On 19 September 2016, all the B-Shares were converted to the
ordinary shares of the Company on a one-for-one basis.

Following the conversion of all the B-Shares, the authorised share
capital of the Company were diminished by the amount of the
B-Shares cancelled and the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to HK$100,000,000 with 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to the written
resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated 20
September 2016.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 20 September 2016, conditional upon the crediting of
the share premium account of the Company as a result of the
issue of shares pursuant to the initial public offering, the directors
were authorised to allot and issue a total of 599,999,000 share of
HK$0.01 each by way of capitalisation of the sum of
HK$5,999,990 standing to credit of the share premium account of
the Company credited as fully paid to the then existing
shareholders.

On 14 October 2016, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. An aggregate of 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at
HK$0.45 per share by way of public offer and placing, raising total
proceeds of HK$90,000,000 before share issue expenses.

On 20 September 2016, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme ”). The Board of the
Company may, at its discretion, invite any eligible persons who
have made contributions to the Group to take up share options.
The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of the Listing
(i.e. a total of 80,000,000 shares).

Options granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised at
any time not exceeding a period of 10 years from the date which
the share option is deemed to be granted and accepted. The
subscription price is determined by the board of directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date; (i) the
average of the closing price of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of
a share.

As at 31 March 2017, no share options had been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and there were no
outstanding share options.

The share capital presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016 represented the issued
share capital of IBI Group Limited.

21. R4 (48)

feE - (48)

©

R_ZE—REAATNA  FAEBBIE—H—mMAEE
BIAARR LB

REMABBIRE - AAREERNIZEZHBRE
BB MARBLEERAEREAQTAHA=T
—ANFNANAZTHENREEADRAZRENE
100,000,000 7T + %A 10,000,000,000 f% & J& &
0.01 BITH EBA% -

BEARARBRRA-ZT—AFNLA-+HBRBRRE
R HFRBREEXAHABREHITROMLS AR ARG
HERALERE ZEZTRRENEREBERRECE R
174 $£599,999,000 A% &A% E{E 0.01 B LAY A BRI
BRI - A BBARRRRG R ERERBEAE
5,999,990 BT TR E N ©

RIZ—XE+ATIE » RNA R RBE IR
7 ° & $£200,000,000 % ZAXEEO0.01 B ITH AR
RIEBERAAREE RS F N IRER0458 T8
170 FEILEEATS HIEA ££90,000,00078 7T (R EHAE
PEITRE) -

RZZB=RFAAZTE  ARARRMERETE
((BRETE])  ARFEFSAUNBEEFEFSY
FEBEHERNA BB A TABERE - BRE
BT A LTRRFE 17 BHRTE ©

RS HERTEITE T ] s iR VBB IR FT S BRI 2R B
R B TSEBER LT AENEHITRHOEE10%
(B4 #80,000,000f%) °

EETEREEANT IHEAERBEREREN BT
AR AR - BIRE R TRBBENE B H RER
2 BB T FHEERTE  c REBERAARESS
BE BRBIRUTEERSE  ()ANARBRHR
e B HIRE TS B MEXRFTRERTIE ¢ (i) IR
DREESFEHPNAAEEARBEIMEARES
FrRF (B - K (i) D EE -

BE_TtF=A=1+—H HEEBENBLE
RSB L - MO S RTTEAOREAHE -

RIZE—ANEZA=Z+—BNGRAUBRRARAES
A% 735 1Bl Group Limited 89 2 17 AEA o
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22,

130

RESERVES

22, f#E

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REFEGEBEZEENHYA&SEERESD

of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. REPEFRNEEFBOT -
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of reserves between the beginning and the end

of the year are set out below:

HRFNGEEREHR - ARAERFEEREE

Share Retained
premium profits Total
IR 0% E REBZF st
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT T FAT
(Note (i)
GED)
Issue of new shares (Note 21(g)) BT (5L 21(e) 88,000 - 88,000
Capitalisation issue (Note 21(d)) B ETT (MEE21(d) (6,000) - (6,000)
Share issues expenses B TR X (8,387) - (8,387)
Profit and total comprehensive F R R ERA LR

income for the year - 43,706 43,706
Dividend declared and paid B8R MRS (Bi5E13)

(Note 13) - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=H=+—H 73,613 23,706 97,319
Note: MIaE
(i) Share premium (i) IR A7 18

Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds received BRAD BB IBB AR R E BETRNEEN
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued. B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

23. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

24.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the

3. KEHEAR
REEE

REMENTEARERR M ER B ERND

Group for its office premises and warehouse. Leases are He HERETHSEENFEHA—Z==%F-
negotiated for terms between one to three years at fixed AR FEREMFTEBBNE BT
rentals. The total future minimum lease payments are due as
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHIT
Not later than one year —F R 2,920 1,115
Later than one year and not later —FIEERFR
than five years 2,904 -
5,824 1,115
HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 24. ZERQ BB EAR R R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2017
—ZT—+tF
Notes HK$’000
P T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiary RETBRARIMIEE 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Hoh U IR 368
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE KB B A B FIE 19,782
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEE ¢’/7) 86,267
Total current assets MBI EELE 106,417
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H b T R IE K BT B 1,099
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 1,099
Net current assets REBEEFE 105,318
NET ASSETS EEFE 105,319
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital i@ 21 8,000
Reserves H1E 22 97,319
TOTAL EQUITY ARz 105,319

On behalf of directors

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EE

RERE=Z

Steven Paul SMITHERS
Director

EE
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25.

26.

132

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s bank facilities
were in the total of HK$36.1 million and HK$41.7 million
respectively.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the bank facilities were
granted and secured by the following:

(@)

a fixed and floating charge on trade receivables of a
group company;

guarantees issued by a group company;
pledged bank deposits;
corporate guarantees issued by the Company; and

personal guarantees executed by Neil David HOWARD
and Steven Paul SMITHERS.

During the year, the above personal guarantees pledged for
the relevant banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31
March 2016 have been released and replaced by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had unutilised
banking facilities of HK$21.8 million and HK$14.2 million
respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel
Emoluments of key management personnel, who are the

directors of the Company, during the year was disclosed in
Note 12.
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EORTRELBDRIRIIBEETLMNTE
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RIE—tFR-ZE-RF=ZA=+—H
BRERTTRRE AT OIS BRI

—EEARE ZERZBEBNETE MFEIHE
50

(@

—fSEE AR L ANER
EHEARITIFHK
ARRIHAMDRER &

Neil David HOWARD f Steven Paul
SMITHERS %2 37 BB A J&1R ©

FR BN -FE-RE=ZA=+—HRAEE
PRERMERRTREBFNEAEREHELR - X
AARR R B EERRK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

27.

28.

GUARANTEES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the
performance bonds issued by a bank and an insurer in favour
of the customers of certain construction contracts. Details of
these guarantees as of the end of reporting periods were as
follows:

27.

=R

AEER—ERITE—HARBRARRE TEES
HMEPBEEMBORERBER ZFERE
EREHROFBWT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
Aggregate value of the performance bonds  [A1% 5 3 H ) B AR B 42 (E
issued in favour of customers 41,553 44,119

The directors are of the opinion that it is not probable that the
bank or insurer will claim against the Group for losses under
the guarantees as it is unlikely that the Group will be unable
to fulfil the performance requirements of the relevant
contracts. The performance bonds are secured by the
pledged deposits of the Group and certain performance
bonds are also secured by personal guarantees of the
directors and corporate guarantees of certain group
companies. Accordingly, no provision for the Group’s
obligations under the guarantees has been made as at 31
March 2017 and 2016.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2016 and 2017, the Group did not have any
capital commitments.

28.

EERA - RITHRBRARIAJETSRERER
AAREERE  RESAEKE N KA EEAET
MEAANENRTE - ARBNRENSEEN
EERMEFEER - METEORETAESEH
BEAEREETERERRNDRERELR -
Rt FER_T-RF=A=1+—8H"
BEB A S BRI N EEED EMEYE -

BARENRE

RZZB-—RERF-—LF=ZA=1t—8B &%
[ 30 S A ] B AN
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. EXER

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to
reduce the cost of capital and to support the Group’s stability
and growth.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts to equity. Total debts include bank borrowings and
amounts due to shareholders. Equity represents total equity
of the Group.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly review
and manage the Group’s capital structure, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group, to
ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, raise new debts or sell assets to reduce
debts.

The gearing ratios as at the end of reporting period were as
follows:

AEEEAERBRIREASENFELZE
77+ DATRRRCERAR ([ 3 K A oAt ) 25 4R B 2 R 1
e BRREELREE  BLPEERAAEX
FASENRTEEMER -

46 B0 R R (A R DA T R B 25 e
R)BERAK - ERERERTERRENRE
HOE o 1T SR B S

ARRBEEREEAEERRENFTRREEE
B REBEAKRENERNGE  UWERESR
ERER@E - AEBRBLERRE S MAABE
ENRREFHEEENGBALIFL AR - Bl
SFBEARER  AEEAEFHBIRN TEERH
BB RMBRRREEAR  BITHBRD 8%
HiEf L EEERE

RERRNEERBLENAT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF 2R
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAET
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITER - EEA - 2,028
Total debts BB - 2,028
Total equity B 138,480 66,070
Gearing ratio BEBELE N/A RiE A 3%
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 5 R b B BB

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the key management under
the policies approved by the board of directors. The Group
does not have written risk management policies. However,
the directors meet regularly to identify and evaluate risks and
to formulate strategies to manage financial risks.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its
risk management. The Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes nor does it hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank
balances and trade and other receivables. The Group’s
bank balances are placed with a reputable bank. Given
its high credit standing, the directors do not expect any
credit risk exposure for the Group’s bank balances.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. The amounts included in
trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of provisions for
doubtful receivables. A provision for impairment is made
where there is an identified loss event which, based on
previous experience, evidenced a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flows. The quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in Note 17.

EARSENHEESBRET  AKREXREERT
AMTERBRAGERR MERER RBHES
[ e Ko B R Bz $‘§ BB R by B IR S BT B
Rl e@™mE  USKEEREHAEEM
%%E%WWEETﬂ%% REREEHREEE
BEERBEEFSHENBRET AKEAYES
T [\ B B IR R AT %%E%Aﬁ%%%&
ST [ B I o T SR LA B B S L B

—MRME » A5 B B HE AR E IR SREUR T BB o
7N B0 A AR AR AT AR T A R H M T A (E$ b
#= o MERARETITEERTAER SRS

(@) FEERR

AEENTESREER/RITERUANES
Ko B FEMGRIR - NEBRIRTTAERR I F M
REBERIFHRIT - ARNEERRRY - &
ERRAEBNRITERTEAZEMEE
Rk -

$‘$IE‘J1*§H|@I%PKET%&EMF§H&
IR © SRR MBI RATURNE 5 R E MK
A IEE?CD&F%EEEH% TR o i h3R AT
AMEREEREBELAR  ARERTD
BengrREgem nER)  AlefE
HRERE - AREASRERYE S M EME
WRIEEEEERBRNEEREHNME
17 °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

30. BiIKEREE (H&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FIEE
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk mainly arises NEFEH N FEEMNZERR T ERABNE20
from bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 20. Bank Frig B sRITIE 3K o 1R [EE PR HERRIT1E
borrowings were issued at fixed rates which expose the R REFAT AT ERNXREPS o A&
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group has no IRITEFIZZEFEGE  WASEBER
cash flow interest rate risk as there are no bank IR S MEF KRR o 2N & [F 30 8 F (1
borrowings which bear floating interest rates. The & B T BB AR E o
Group has not used any financial instruments to hedge
potential fluctuations in interest rates.
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBEERMR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and AEEMEE R T AEIEIRE M IERE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it BLER  BEREEFFTEHNINSEHEE - UE
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity e ERRRBESENK -
requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TREFFBERFBRREESRERANEEATH
maturities at the end of each of the Relevant Periods of ERNMNPFHNEEAHZ2NNANEFRBIETES
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on BEENSEBHREERENTGHE OEH
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the 15 e
Group can be required to pay.
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
BENRUT 1R BB1E BB2F
BEE BERE HERER BHR2F BHREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TET TET THT TET
At 31 March 2017 RZB—-t%
=A=t+-H
Trade payables B S ENTE 14,361 14,361 14,361 = =
Accruals for costs of AN TR AKE B
contract works 129,306 129,306 129,306 - -
Retention payables JEAHRE 7hIE 34,068 34,068 30,094 3,974 -
Other payables and HiEMNFIER
accruals BT EH 7,636 7,636 7,636 - -
185,371 185,371 181,397 3,974 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

30. BiIKERERE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) FREESER (E)
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
KRBT 15K i1 iR 2 F
RHEE Benme FIREK BOR25F BOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FAET THT THT
At 31 March 2016 RZB-R¥
=RA=t-H
Trade payables EC T ANE 26,612 26,612 26,612 - -
Accruals for costs of ANTRKAEASER
contract works 163,328 163,328 163,328 - -
Retention payables JERRE R 32,195 32,195 28,356 3,839 -
Other payables and accruals EH R RIE R
FEEtEM 6,233 6,233 6,233 - -
Bank loans PITERK 2,028 2,092 2,002 - -
230,396 230,460 226,621 3,839 -
(d) Currency risk B bk

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)
and Macau Patacas (“MOP”). The MOP is in turn
pegged to HKD and the exchange rate between these
currencies has remained relative stable over the past
several years. Accordingly, the Group does not expect
fluctuations in the values of these currencies to have
material impact on the operations.

AEENEBEERRXZERAEBT(H
JT 1) RORFIHEE (TERFI% ) REAL - RPIEHE
BTTEE > M B e HWEREBER
FHRHERFRE - At AEEERZEFE

BOEEKDTEHEEEREX
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

31. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities:

31. TRMEERESHEBN I BHRE

TRIREBEERABENREE :

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loan and receivables at BEBHEE AR E SRR E
amortised costs
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EUGRIE 63,180 75,836
Pledged deposits [T EE 15,947 18,841
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEEYD 122,341 51,594
Financial liabilities cRas
Financial liabilities at amortised costs Z# K I RHIEHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REM B FRIE 185,205 228,228
Bank borrowings RITEN = 2,028

The above financial instruments are not measured at fair
value, due to their short term nature, the carrying values
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE T+ F=A="1+—HIFE

32. SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 March 2017, the particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, all of which are companies with limited

liability, are as follows:

32. B F

RIE—+tF=A=+—HB ARAXENER
A(2HER/ERAF)HWFBEWAT

Place and date of Issued and Attributable equity
incorporation and Place of fully paid-up interest held Principal
Name of subsidiary type of legal entity operations capital Directly Indirectly activities
ERATBUR ABAR Bggr T OAPRE
WEARER ERERER LEw BRRE =84 BE TEER
IBI Corporate BVI BVI US$100 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Corporate HERUES HERLEE 1007 REER
Holdings Limited —ZE-FNATHEA
BRAR
IBI Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
9 May 2011
Limited liability company
IBI Group Limited £ 9 100787T REER
—Z——%7ANA
BRAT
B Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,876,544 - 100%  Provision of renovation
14 April 1997 contracting services
Limited liability company for property projects
IBI Limited Bk BE 10,876,544 78 7T REMEIER OB
—NAEENA+TIA HBR%
AR
IBI Projects Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of renovation
1 April 2005 contracting services
Limited liability company for property projects
IBI Projects Limited B B 28T REMEEE MR
“ZEREMA—H EERE
BRAT]
IBI Macau Limited Macau Special Administrative Macau Special MOP - 100%  Provision of renovation
Region Administrative 25,000 contracting services
11 April 2005 Region for property projects
Limited liability company
IBI Macau Limited BEPIRRITHE BEPIERITRE 25,000;2F9% REMFIER OB
—ZEREMNA+—A HBRH%
BRAT
IBI Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of management
9 May 2011 services within
Limited liability company the Group
IBI Holdings Limited 0 90 100757T REASENFERRS
—Z——FRANA
ARAR
IBI Company Storage BVI Hong Kong US$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Company Storage HERUES e 100% 7T REER
Limited —Z-RFENATEA
BRAR

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE T —t+F=HA=1+—HIFE

33. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 33. #EMKEIRE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEMBHERERN _E—+F AT+ N\HESZ
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June e IR o
2017.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of ANEE:@FNEMBFEENEEUANLEE  BENMER
the Group for the last four financial years is as follows: BRI -

Revenue W8 615,376 661,082 539,466 456,831
Gross profits EF 58,364 53,975 47,198 35,599
Profit before income tax & BT 15 5 A s A 15,482 33,733 26,490 17,126

Profit for the year (excluding listing 48 A% F|
expenses) (k% EmRA) 27,130 28,842 22,383 14,574

Profit for the year F A5 A 10,797 28,269 22,383 14,574

Total Comprehensive income FRNEEBALLTE
for the year 10,797 28,269 22,380 14,560

Assets EE

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,331 374 470 200
Current assets mENEE 322,822 303,369 202,186 194,174
Total assets BE®RE 325,153 303,743 202,656 194,374
Liabilities =L

Current liabilities REAE 186,673 237,673 164,855 178,953
Total liabilities BfEERE 186,673 237,673 164,855 178,953
Total equity BRERS 138,480 66,070 37,801 15,421
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“2017 AGM”

(T2 —tFRRAFRE |
CAGAY

[A&A]

“Articles”

(AR EZAA ]

“Audit Committee”
[EZEZEZ

“Board”
30

“BVI”
[REBELHS]

“China” or “PRC”
[ ]

“CG Code”
(&SR

“Code Provision(s)”
SEUESd

“Company” or “our Company”

A WVANSI

“Companies Ordinance”
[A &G

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ ER

“Deed”
[324% ]

“Directors”

[EF]

“ESG Report”
[ESG #i45
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the 2017 annual general meeting of the company to be held on Friday, 22
September 2017
ARBER - ZB—tFNA+ - HERD BTN _Z—EFRFEFAKA

=

alteration and addition

M Ropngz

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended from
time to time
R BB E IR KL S AR (S TRFHERT)

the audit committee of the Company
RRFIEZEE]

the board of Directors
259

the British Virgin Islands
REBRIES

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARKME - SARENS - TRETE RFAMKGE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended from time to time

ETRRIMEA14 (R EERTADEREHERT)

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
B < RIFTE ST AR X

IBI Group Holdings Limited
IBI Group Holdings Limited

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEEDIE 622 F (R al&H)

Mr. Neil David Howard and Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, being the controlling
shareholders of our Company
Neil David Howard 5t 4 K Brilliant Blue Sky Limited (& 48 7 7] 8 #2 AR AR 58 )

the deed of non-competition
TS RIE

the director(s) of our Company

ARRIER

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
AARMBE B REABRE



DEFINITIONS
eSS

“ESG Reporting Guide”

[ESG#H &SI

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”

or “us”

RS m ] 5 [3xAf)

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Listing Date”
[ ETREE]]
“Listing Rules”
[ TR 8l]

“Macau”

[DRFT ]

“Main Board”

E

“Model Code”

[1R2Esy Al

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2RBg

“Prospectus”
[ AR EE ]

“Remuneration Committee”

EdE

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time

ETRBIBER 27 FTENCERE - & REIRREE D FEERT)

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires, in
respect of the period before our Company became the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors
RARIREMBAT (ARG REEMN—RIZKWERAR] RIRNERE
M) HANEMT - RARBIKBEREMNE R RHZER AR 2 ATHRE -
BEARRIMNRAENBE AR RZEMBE R AR ENEB KRB RME)
(=g RO TIE= /NG

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFEBRRTTRER

14 October 2016, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board
first commence

“E-RETA+THEHE - AR ERFREIRESN RS

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

TRCEZF ETRRDETRAERT ~ s AR e

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R DRI RITTIR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange

MR PMEENRBHRZ S (T RIEETIS) - B R PAEIFRIE 7 I
T8k

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time

ETRAMEA0MEC LM EITAESETESFRXZNRETADETRHER)

the nomination committee of the Company

ZAN/NSTE R

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September 2016
ARRIBHR_Z—REFNLAZTLANERER

the remuneration committee of the Company
RAFHFMEES
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Senior Management”
SREEE]

“SFC”

[EEE ]

“SFO”
[F& 7 KR RS

“Share Option Scheme”
[ g At 21 )

“Share(s)”
[ A%

“Shareholder(s)”
[A%ER ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 52 P |

“Takeovers Code”

el

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)”

[T 8 B

“MOP”
[DRPTH |

“US$” or “USD” or “US dollars”
EM

“g
[%]

144 B Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017

the senior management of the Company
ApalmBER

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BARRFMMEEHERZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time to time

BREDIF 571 B R F M EEPD (BT EHERT R FE)

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 20 September 2016
ARV ZE—NFNA -+ BEMNOERER S

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
RARIRAT EIREE0.01 8 LA E @A

the holder(s) of the Shares
RADFEA A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMARZMARAR

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the SFC,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEFHEMHHOCATINE - 50t RROEETAD (KTRERT - s AEAM
7 EAEH)

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEERREB T B

Macau pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

BRFVATE EHIRFIEE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

KBAEEBET

per cent
ERNs¢



BUILD BETTER



	封面
	目錄
	財務摘要
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡歷
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	釋義
	封底

